MINNESOTA
HISTORICAL
SOCIETY

Minnesota Works Progress Administration:
Writers Project Research Notes.

Copyright Notice:

This material may be protected by copyright law (U.S.
Code, Title 17). Researchers are liable for any
infringement. For more information, visit
www.mnhs.org/copyright.

Version 3
August 20, 2018


http://www.mnhs.org/copyright
http://www2.mnhs.org/library/findaids/00695a.xml













Itasca County History - Logging - northern itasgca County =

The following is a logging day story taken from "The Last Frontier", Bergit
Anderson, 194l. -

One story, "the most horrifying happening was perhaps that of "Sour Dough

Joe", He was a cook at one of the early camps between Big Deer Lake and

Bear River. He was taken ill and died in camp. The members of the crew did

not bother to get a coffin, but put his remains in & pork barrel for

burial. In order to get the entire body into the barrel, it was necessary to cut the
limbs off and push the pieces in with the rest of 1it.

A rough tombstohe was hewn out of & pine log and placed at the hedd
of Bis grave which they dug under a small pine. On this slab was inscribed
the following words:

Here lies Sour Dough Joe
If he don't kick, the tree will grow.
According to Mansel Sasunders, who knows the place, the tree is togday

a nice big pine measuring four feet in diameter at the base."

The above is the story as printed. I tried out Mansel as I know every
section of the country between Big Deer Lake and Bear River. Mansel 1s
very vague about the location of the big pine, although they move about but
little. Am afraid the girlie was taken., Anyhow it is a good story, of its
kind. One is caused to wonder if said cook was such & very, very good cooke.
The narrative does not co-incide with the general attitude toward a really
good camp cooke After all, why waste a perfectly good pork barrel, if that
is the way they felt or carve out a slab grave marker with inscription
when about the same smount of ax work would have built a rude coffin, the
added work of amputation would certainly covered any difference in the
compared labore Fear that this story ﬁ#ﬁfﬁlﬁl parallels the one &about
the cup of tea made from the hot water from the tank in _which the frozen
Indian squaw had been thawed. There are others, still less "palatable"
stories designed to spoil appetites seem to have been considered good
"table chat" by the jacksa.
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Itasca County History - Cohasset.
Interview witl : [ aker, old settler on south end of Bass Lake in 56-26,

Chris W, Daker came to Itasca County in about 1888, before there was
railroad in Gre api When he first came, the end of the railroad was
Ia Prairie. He did not stay here, the first timey but came up from Cloquet
A Prairie, then went back.

lr, Daker was born in Canada., Bgfore he came to Itasca County he was
in Cloquet for ten or fifteen years, The ¢ time he came up here, La Prairie
was booming, H
] ] in La Prairie. They knew a man by the name of Billy Pyndall, who
Prairie. They asked Billy Tyndall's advice about buying lots,
them not to buy, because he said he did not think the town would

said Grand LHapids might amount something, but he didn't think so.

to
1id not buy any lots, but Savage bought some.

Baker staye La Prairie for a while and hired to go and

He finally got discouraged, and went back to Cloguets,

George lMoore ai a man named McCarty started a shingle mill in Cohasset,

came to Cloquet and got Mr. Baker to come and work for them in the mill.

id that after working in the all summer he got only about half of his

Phe second time 1 akel me her the railroad had
He has stayed in this country ever since.

homesteade

worked in tl oods and lumt camps, and later in the

around Bear River at on nd around Mud Lake, but

r
mostly around CUohasse

said he remembers Bob Mosemo., A4l (a sey married Mosemo's

daughter. They are both desd now, The Mosemo house is burned. There used to
be a2 clearing ; ;

(=

house on top of 2 hill . The last time Mr. Baker was up

there there were no markes left of where Mosemo!'s was.

when Mr, ker came here he said there were no signs of old deserted

8ing camps. <Lhe first camps he remembers here was Freeman and Gray. They
d two or three camps. Mr. Baker worked in one of them. He says they when
'orked here first he didn't believe there had been any logs driven out of
lhere r lama across the creek to hold the water back. The railroad

ast of the r L that 1s there now, crossed Bass Brook east of Mr. B: £ers

“

q adA * A 1 a1
 bals G ! Side of the lake.

Jaker used to work in a shingle mill in Minneapolis.

(oochiching before they were married.

























Custere. Indians.

porn én Lower Pigeon Lake. I can remember

I have been over the old

trail from Jowstring Lake to Canada several times as a 1 and as a young

but it has been so long ago I could not sa2y Jjust whe it ra There

an old Indian portage just north of my buildings. This port

Lake to Squaw Lake. The portage ran just south of Sec. 34,

When I was a boy it was many Wg times hard get something to eat, as
We lived mostly on meat and fish. Many folks thi: this is not so, but the Indians
did not always have the things they have how to get game. In those days
no bread, no tea or fee, no sugar except maple sugar, and we very seldom
'he Chippewa used birech bark foz svery thing, even mgking pots from
pots could be placed over a fire they had to be full of water or
It makes no difference how old a pie f bireh bark is, it can

d rulled up or unrolled, if i i first warmed before & fire

Indian Look Qut on the Vance place., This was
dug into the hillside J ; ¢ast of the Vance buildings. From there you
could see for miles up Dora Lake, and for miles down
the leaves were off the trees. Bj pping ' the e and to the right, you
for at least a couple of miles up the Popple,
The first white man I ever saw was at the mission on Pigeon River.

had heard of him befor though.
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It is no wonder
Upon seeing one in 5 river,
to the other shore as possible to give them as mueh room as
Seemed to do very little good. It made little difference how
how far you tried to keep from them, they would always manage
before taking to the

river below my I think s me

went from Deer Riv

had occasion to use this trail, but I

after crossing the river r

I think it 0L wnere No., 5 now




Fork Valley = Vuster

The last battle between the Chippewa and the Sioux in this territory was
high point of land running out into the lake from the
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ITASCA COUNTY HISTORY = Bonniwell.
Biography. Tommie Brown.

Tommie Brown was born in Glasgow, Scotland in 1862 and came to
Minneapolis the spring of 1885. In the fall of 1885 he came to Grand Rapids
by boat from MAnneapolis. He said the only team of horses in Grand Rapids at
that time were owned by Chris Burns (Mark Burns' dad), and that team was in
great demand, Jack Fraser built and owned the Fraser House at La Prairie.
It was a two-story building. He said he couldn't see much difference in the
morals of La Prairie and Grand Rapids. Just frontier towns, was his opinion.

Jim Sherry had a hotel near where the paper mill now stands,
Sherry's aArm, on Pokegams Lake, was named for Jim Sherry. He homesteaded
there in very early days,

Tommie Brown met and married a Chippewa maiden by the name of
Louise Tib-gih-di, shortly after ecoming to Grand Rapids. They still live at
Ball Clubs Louise Tib-sih-di was born April 7, 1869 in the sugar bush at
Bowstring Lake, and has lived in Itasca County all her life.

While interviewing Tommie Brown and his wife, I asked about
head marks and what significance they carry. She said they were made with
flint cuts, made on the temple eriss-cross. Medicines were rubbed into the
cuts to make them bleed, and then they used a cow's horn over the cut and
Sucked the blood with their lips. This was considered the same as bleeding
in the medical profession of the white man,

Frank Seavey was clerk of court at Aitkin about 1893.

Lowe G. Seavey married Sho-gor-ish, meaning Irish., She was a
sister of Betsy Smith, who died at Ball Club two years ago.

Source: Mr. & Mrs. Tommie Brown, Ball Club, May 23, 1941,




Itasca County History = research notes by,ﬂary Bonniwell

Pommy Brown of Ball Club, was borh in Glasgow, Scotland in 1862 and came to

Minneapolis the spring of 1885 and in the f£all of 1885 he came to Grand

Rapids by hoat from Minneapolis. He sald the only team of horses in Grand

Rapids at that time were owned by Chris Burns (Mark Burns Father) and

that the team was in great demand. He recalls that Jack Frases built and

owned the Fraser House in La Prairée (not neccessarily at the date of 1885)

it was a two story building. Tommy said there wasn(t ang difference in the morals
of La Prairie and Grand Rapids, just frontier towns, was his opinion.

Jim Sherry had a hotel near where the paper mill now stands. SherrysArm on
Pokegama Lake was named for Jim Sherry, he homesteaded there in the very
early days.

Tommy Brown met and married a Chippewa maidenby the name of Tib -sih-di
shortly after coming to Grand Rapids. They still live at Ball Club emjoying
life. They have a few ducks and chickens.

Lowdd¢ Loulse Tib-sih-di was born April 7, 1869 in the sugar bush at
Bow String Lake, and has lived here always.

While interviewing Tommy Brown and wife I asked about the head marks and
what significence they carry and she said they were made with flint, outs
being made criss-cross on temple and medicine rubbed into cuts to make them
bleed, and then theybused & cow horn over the cut and sucked the blood with their m
mouths. This was conaidered the same as bleeding in the medical profession
of the white man.

Mr. Brown recalled that Frank Seavey was clerk of court at Altkin about
1893,

Lowe G, Seavey married Sho-gon-osh, meaning Irish, a sister of Betsy Smith.
Betsy Smith died in Ball Club about three years ago.

gotten by Mary Bonniwell from Tommy and Louise Brown of
Ball Club, Minn. during an interview April 3o, 1941,
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History =~ from Custer notes =~ LOGGING - INDIANS,Busticoggan
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“ Itasea County History - from Custer notes - LOGGING - INDIANS - [g)

BRUISEWIRZ (B)

The Rounu Lske branch was also called the Peruna branch as they said

the lumber-jacks at Round Lake camp used to have Peruna shipped in by the
casey on which they got drunk on the patent medicines

Ford statlion was at Dora Lake. Stanley was also called Rattlesnake
Junction because of the rattlesnake whiskey sold there. It was where

Wirt now stands. Bunrs was a mile and a half north of Stanley on the

SW side of Clear Lske. Stanley was the name of the station located on the
south side of the river. Wirt was just across the river from Stanleye. The

postoffice was always Wirt. S&fterwards Wirt was moved to the south

side of the river.










ITASCA COUNTY HISTORY = Donniwell,
Biography. Carl Christie.
L
Garl Christie and his wife May went duck hunting down the Bow-

§tring river one fall, They heard & terrible commotion, and thought it was

the Indians on the "War Path™, It was the most hair-raising noise you could
imagine, but when they investigated it was timber wolves after a deer.

They paddled along the river, but were not
ducks. 4bout that time along came some Indians,
a bushel basket f 3 They figured their ducks cost them 15¢
averyone who saw their ducks went hunting in the same
h not much more success Then one day George Bla
g Shoot" Carl and May
luck, but he did meet
; to
to tell how many they had to Carl for shells,
wa. s 7

o r 1 3 - ¥ T« } &~ [, oY ey
s al er : i ha : augh to ¢arl and May

wanted to buy ducl and they hey didn't have any

Carl Christie, bowstring, May 16, 1941,
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ITASCA COUNTY HISTORY = —Onnl-'b&lu /

Biography. Robert Christie,

Robert Chtistie, his wife and two sons, Carl and Rahl, came to
Bowstring to homestead in 1896, This was because of the illness of Robert
Christie, who had been a musiclan all his 1life in concert and band work. The
Christie's had all been musical, Hobert Christie's grandfather had the first
band the Ringling Brothers Circus had,ﬂﬂ{l and all down through the gener-
ations they did band and concert work. When Robert's health failed, the band
was soon abandoned by the others.

After coming to Bowstring he regained his health, and lived until
about 1935.

Carl said he hated to talk about those old times, as there were

so many hardships connected with them; but as he talked to me he could see
gsome funny things connected with it all., One of these was when his mother
was taking care of their stock at Little Bowstring, she had to sleep in the
barn where the stock was. In the night she was awskened by men's voices,
the barn door opened, and in walked two burly lumberjacks. She arose from
where she had been sleeping, and pointing her finger at them, she said,
"Get out of herej" They backed out, and very quickly closed the door behind
them, In the morning one of the men said to the other, ™I guess I am drink-
ing too much whiskey again. I saw a woman in that old barn last night, and
I know there isn't a woman closer than Deer River." The other fellow laugh-
ed and said, "No, you haven't got them this time., There is a woman staying
at that old barn, taking care of her stocke™ So the lumberjack was much re-
lieved to know he wasn't seeing things.

Carl also told of how he and another youngster started to walk
from the portage on Little Jesse Lake to their homes and took & wrong trail
and were very thoroughly lost. They sat down and pondered the situation a
few minutes, They decided they had to make a fire, so they proceeded to
gather wood to last them through the night. The wolves were howling all
around them, and they had been warned to stop walking and make a fire and
keep it going if they ever got lost. So they put into practice what they
had been told. About midnight their folks saw the fire through the trees, and
were right beside them when they shot off a gun. The youngsters thought they
were about to be scalped by the Indians, but their fears soon subsided when
they saw their folks so near them. The parents had been hunting the children
for hours, so this was a very glad reunion for all of them. You may be sure
it made the children very careful thereafter.

Carl also told of one time he and Andrew Melhus went moose
hunting. They portaged their boat into Big Jesse Lake over a half-mile
portage, (The Bm Lerch Portage), then paddled along until they came to
Bill Brown's place on Big Jesse Lake. They hunted for hours, but nary a
thing did they find to shoot, and came back empty handed long after dark.
They paddled along, trying to find the Lerch landing at the portage, but
Carl said only green kids would have gptten lost. So they went ashore and
built a fire and stayed until daylight., <“his was in the month of November,
so it was very chilly. “hen daylight came, they were only a few rods from
the landing so they soon got home, cold and hungry, but none the worse for
their expedition., He said the thing that tickled him the most on this ex-
pedition was that Andrew's coat tail had gotten in the lake and icicles
formed and hung dangling, like long glass beads, as he walked.




ITASCA COUNTY HISTORY - Bonniwell.

Biography. Robert Chiistie - 2. //

Robert Christie couldn't get homestead land on a lake shore,
so he homesteaded back of Melhus, then when opportunity arose he traded his
homestead for land on Bowstring lake shore, formerly homesteaded by a Mr.
Walker. The log house Walker built still stands on this property, and Carl
has repaired and fixed it up for a cabin to rent. He also has eight other
cabihs built and furnished very comfortably, and these cabina are full all
season. He saya they have things very nice now, but sometimes he would trade
all this for the neighborliness and good times the community enjoyed away
back in 1896,

Carl also tells how he and W. J. Gibbs portaged their boat over
the Lerch portage from Little Jesse Lake to Big Jesse Lake and paddled across
to the hoist the Minneapolis and Reiny River Railroad had established on Big
Jesse Lake, to get the first Post Office cabinet in April, 1902, They loaded
this cabinet into their boat and paddled back across the lake to the Lerch
portage, then carried the cabinet one-half mile to Little Jesse. Then they
went back and got the boat and carried it across the portage, then loaded
the cabinet into the boat and paddled across Jewwe to the Melhus landing. There
they loaded it on a dray drawn by an Indian pony and took it through the woods
to We J. =ibbs store on Bowstring lake. This sounds easy when you read about
it, but portaging a boat a half-mile each way, and carrying a Post 0ffice
cabinet that distance was real work, and something Carl would just as soon
forgets He says there were always jobs coming up that had to be done the hard
way, so it is little wonder that he said he didn't waht to remember those hard-
ships or talk about them.

Carl also told about his father, Robert Christie, and Duncan
MeDougall going Moose hunting. <+hey wounded the moose and he managed to get
to the lake., <They took after the moose with a boat. They caught up to him
and put another bullet into him, and then grabbed him by the horns and towed
him to shore. Carl and Andrew went to help get the moose ashore, but all four
of them couldn't budge him from where they had towed him by boat; so they bled
him and butchered him right in the edge of the lake, and cut up the meat.
One hind quarter was all their pony could haul at a time, so they transported
the meat from the water and up the hill to a root house on the Melhus pro-
perty. 41l the settlers came with their pack sacks and carried the moose meat
to their homes. They all knew what the other fellow was eating, for a while
at least. ©Some of the settlers smoked and cured part of this moose meat, and
in that way preserved the meat much longer. Necessity was the mother of in-
vention in those days, and taught them to preserve their food for the future.

Carl told of a plum picking expedition the neighbors had in
1902, &Lach took his boat, paddled to the portage on Little Jesse lake, port-
aged across into Big Jesse Brook and into the Bowstring river, then into the-
Big fork river. On one point they came to in the river there stood a big
Indian clad only in & shirt, so they named this point "Shirt Tail Point",
and to this time the point is still known by that name,

The Melhus family, Robert Christie family, We J. Gibbs and wife,
the George Johnston family, Mr. & Mrs. Duncan McDougall were in the party.
They even took Macks old violin along, and they were gone three days, They
sald, how so much fun could be packed into three short deys, no one but that
gang could conceive,

& May Christie (Mr. & Mrs. Cerl Christie) May 16, 1941.

8t Office cabinet referred to in this story is still in use at

S
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and store of Carl & May Christie, Bowstring, )
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Custer notes - INDIANS
to thin strips of cedar with what locked to be cedar bark.

1ese cedar strips were sewn to both sidea of the vark. They were flat on the
side next to the bark but the other side was rounded, I still have some of these
cedar strips. At that time I lived on the Zerkel place, on which the flat rock
is located. While plowing my garden there I plowed up a spear head. This spear head
was made of flint rock. It was 81 inches long and between two and a half and three
wide., This puzzled me as I have made a study of Indians and their ways and I
never heard of the Indians in this countpy using spears. A'few years later up the
river a few miles I came upon an old pit where I suppose Indians had hidden
some - pails for making maple syrup, a8 pld timers say Chief Busticoggan used

to have a sugar camp here. This pit was about four foot sguare. It was lined
with birehbark and covered with bark, In this pit I found a number of eld
of different sizes, also one copper kettle. The kettle was about the
quart measure, It had a tight fitting lid with a heavy brass ring

in it on one side was marked 1 qt. This kettle is now on display at DEAN KANNE'S
garage in Bigfork. There was ales a small cast iron kettle that I still have,.
’he place where I found this stuff is aimost directly across the river from a
high sand ridge where old man Babcock said the Inddans used to hold their
pow-wows. He homesteaded the place. He said there were times when it was almost
impossible to sleep for the noise they made, About 2 mile down the river from where
I fould the old tepee is a cedar swamp which shows lots of evidence of Indians havimg
made canoe here. Also of taken ar D: from here to make sunmer tepees.

e summer tepees being of cedar bark while the winter were maDE MOSDTLY of birch
barke - Custer's comment)~ Bill has made Indians and their wgys a study. He has
even experimented in doing things as the Indians did Me ssys it isn't hard es
they managed to do everything so as to cause nature to help them. For the past

7 years he ha& made a living making birch bark canoces for sale. The spot where the

held their pow-wows is glmost.-on the line betweeh Sec. 2 of 149 and Sec.

©0 of 150 range &5.. Bill glso says he can find part of an old school seat used in

<

the old Bergum school. He found the seat several years ago and hung it in s trece.

R
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thinks that the smoking of the birch bark in @




- INDIANG

kind of smoke used. At one time & ch
chemical company in Wis. told him they sould firnish him & formula to treat birch

bark so he could gateher it in the spring and store it away for future use without

e/

it becoming hard and brittle., But they did hot know if it would affect the strength

of the barke The Indians never chopped down a tree if they could help it. To ge ¢

=]

1 -

the cedar for the ribs of their canoces they would picka nice teee and chop into it
about the root swell and then they would meke another chip four or five feet
he ground and split out the piece hetween the chips. Then do the same with another
as they ws ] hen they eould have cut one tree
and had ehough material from the one tree. Bj aking a piece from each of four or

five trees, from the side, it left a s but didn't kill




Itasca County History = hn Sornberger, Sky Pilot -

From interview with Eugene (Custer by Gilbert I. Custer, field worker,
Eugene Custer ha s made & hobby of collecting "Sornbergert® data. The
facts as given by Hugene Custer are taken from his narrative and his
personal comments omitted, as th 8 not intended as a tract.—~ Shaw,
Custer blaims to haye gotten the ry mostly from the Reve. Sornberger
himself, ineluding #*% that is given in this item.
was born in Ontario, Canada, losing his mother when
uncle in New York State,
the name of Sparrow, whose head
mention of his father dw
John Sornberg
5t Cloud firm.
woods of Minnesota
a8 working
of learning if his parent was worthy of being ealled father. he did not, for
we are not
ever accepted each other or not.
3 bookkeeper for two years He then worked
the Hines Boarding Co. , contractors, serving

/nen he left this position he came to the log

he built up quite a reput
promoters signed him up and he went in the ring.
0ld when he began fighting. After 126 bouts, he was matihed with
Australian with the ring name of "SHADDOW MABAE" n this,

I o ~ R WA A v A Sea e Sl = - ) md= £ 2 1 4 e 3 : 1 7
the one hundred and twenty seventh and last 1ight, John received a broken

o

SR T A T e b g SRR mhs e, R T S
oroken nose and one broken arm. As John himself expressed it, he was

} m e 3 W - gmee | PRy - o> — T~
/nen healed up he resumed the role of camp cook,

drive on the Mississip




Itaseca County History = John Sornberger, Shy Pilot (2)

They passed out a considerable amount of this bogus money up &nd down the
river until the federals got on their trail., One day as they tied up at the
bank near Cohasset, Minn. the Federals were so close on them that John and
his helper took to the woods, leaving on such short notice that they left all their
money making equipment.
For several years after this John Sornberger was g fugitive from justice,
and also a noted jail bresker as it seemed that no jail in northern Minnesota
was able to hold him, At one time, lodged in the Grand Rapids jail, John sat
looking out of his cell window where he could see a couple of men clearing

brush around the jail. When the brush cutters quit work for the day they

left their ax leaning against the building below John's cell window. He had

a broom in his room and he removed the wire from it, made & loop in one end,

fished up the ax and chopped himself out. He made for a single plank walk
made by planks laid loose on e¢ross pieces nailed to pairs of posts. This
plank walk extended across a deep water lagoon along the river fromt near the
Jaill. He made the best posaible time across the planks but heard heavy breathing
close behind. He knew this to be an exceptionally big, ox-like French
deputy sheriff and he didn't care for the prospective grapple. As he crossed the
last plank he jerked it after him and let the deputy down into 7 or 8 feét
of mud and water. With the fresh start he rounded the comner of the big saw-mill
and a night watchman who came out under the sawdust carrier at that time
reported that he was knocked over by a large moose and trampled underfoot.
He even claimed to have spied an enormous spread of antlers.

The supposed moose slipped quietly into the river among the saw logs and
dove, coming mp between logs, far out. Soon lanterns appemred, twenty or thirty of t
the
them, but no prisoner or moose or moose sign could be found. Searchers decided that
the prisoner had taken to the road rather than ti river, and went for their
horses, and started down the road. After they had gone John took to the road
behind them. At a fork of the road John stepped off into the brush, waiting to

determine wh PR Tt ¥ ~ o had alras T4 a3 5 4 5 }
devtermine which road the posse had taken. His plan was walt until they came
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Itasca County History - Sorenberger, Sky Piloft. -

back to take the other fork and them mse the route ¢ had left. He waited

2 o » wva weam 4 - | = +ha farl anAd
untyLl A% 18 2et 4 the searct 5 returned to the fork and

dismounted. gscouted the aresa about the
action started, John thought i1t wise to return to towm
(1 lights In Grand Rapids John had
for this
intended to rest un

(colored friend was undioubtedly Dave Chambers or

restaurant in connection with the Logan ssloon, on
south of the Pokegama hotel, =bout where the movie

north of it.)

The general strategy was as followss- When Sornberger should signal b;
seraping his feet in a certain way, the colored friend would open the door
wide and give John plenty of room for a running start. Officers, knowing of
his friendship, questioned the colored gentleman, who lied like a gentiheman.
Dave's politeness was appreciated, but the place was watched, just in case.
Dave was not dumb and knew he was being watched. He slipped up stairs and
warned John. Jogn said, "0.K., Pop, when I scuffle, open that back door and
open 1t wide and stand out of the way.

After dark, caue the scuffle, the wide opened door, and John came down
on the run and leaped out as far as he could from the door and lit running.
As he came thiough the door a gun was fired from each side of the door by
posted guards. They missed., In all thirty one shots were fired a2t him in
this escape, but he did receive a scratch,

Another time he was in the toils of the law at either Black Duck or

Bemidji where he had been arrested by = big French-Canadian officer. John

mast have protested the arrest as the officer worked him over with & piece of

lead pipe. The cop threw John, resembling hamberger, into a ceell, locked
him up and left, dropping the lead pipe in the hallway in front of the cell,

Later the same deputy came with John's supper on & tray. Johnw was playing

possum ang did not move, apparently was still "out™. Qhe sight of John brought

no happy thoughts to the mind of the deputy and he began to n




Itasca County Histdry = Sornberger, Sky Pilot. (4)

nouss" John out. When he stooped to set down the tray, John landed on hhks
jaw, and the deputy passed out. John stepped into the hall, picked up the lead
pipé, came back intéé the cell and gave the deputy just what he figured he
had received with the lead pipe, stepped outside, locked the cell and walkked
away,,throwing the lead pipe and the keys as far as he could into about three
feet of snow.
John escaped from many a jail and many a trap in northern Minnesota.

He was & likable fellow and had many friends, even among officers. At Ten
Strike he was told by afficers to get away quickly as the Federals were

close upon him, At one time he lay for several days in a swamp east bf
Black Duck, while "the heat was on".

He was working in a logging camp about fifty miles north of Black Duck,
lying in his bunk reading a book while & lumberjack "preacher" was holding
services in the room below where was John's bunk. The "preacher" was Frank
Higgins. John said he tried not to listen 2sjh he was interestee in his book.
Listen he did,however, and what he heard led to his conversion. The follow-

ing morning Sornberger begged Higgins to let him accompany him and help

him, Higgins knew John was a fugitive and told him to wait a few days and

he would return. Higgins went to governor Johnson and begged for a pardon

for Sbrnberger, testifying to his belief in the sincerity of John's intentions
of living differently. He evidently convinced the governor &s he was told to
bring John in, This he did, and John was pardoned.(Just what was done a2bout
those federal charges is not disclosed. There is a hole heres)

From this time John Sornberger became a lumber camp "sky pilot". Oldsters
8ll over the Northern Minnesota area testify to the good that he did in
the following years. One of his achievements was the establishment of the
first church at Bigfork, the Presbyterian church. The first building was a
log structure, later replaced by the present church building.

John was gquite active in the boom days of prohibition. He was a stern

=

enemy of John Barleycorn, and toured over a great part of the country on his
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speaking campaign for the dry cause. He talked on the subject before thousands,

among them, Woodrow Wilson, then president, and VWm, Jennings Bryan,

i« A« Brown of Big Fork w an article as a memorial at the time of Sornberger's

death in 1939. He said, in part,~ Sornbergerwas introduced into the Bigfork
when our village was new and prosperous under the rule of King Alcohol,

with seven saloons, one store, & school, & sawmill, and several shacks. A

building that had been used as a saloon was vacated and aprangements made

to use the pla hold meeting: his consuming desire was to save souls.
(A1l recollections seem agre ;hat Sornberger came to Bigfork to preach in 1909.)

From "The Last Frontier" and verified by interviews it is agreed that

Yo o™
WS Frang

as the first lumberjack's "Shy Pilot" preaching in the northern Itascs

traveled from camp to camp, during their winter operating season,
ced John Sornberger in thet region as sky pilot
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Itasea County History - 5ig fork Valley - Custer

CAMP SITE WHERE GUNS WERE FOUKD - (2)

On my last visit to the site I found only some pieces of bones. These
were all among the ashes except one. They were all broken into small pleces,
80 1t was impossible to guess the kind of bones they might be, except the plece
which was not in the ashes, This bone must have been from some large animal,

probably a moose,
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Itasca County Hist.-

Interview with George Davis.-
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Itasea County Mistory - from Custer notes - museun pleces, guns found on Big Fork.

Custer comment continued (2)

ground, When it fell it knocked the rifle over and fell and 8aid across it.

The double barrel was muzzle loader with one London twist barrel, sometimes
called Damascus barrel., 0ldtimers say they used to make guns this way. One barrél
was for shot the other for ball.
I showed the rifile to an oldtimer here
Winchestee,
off deliberately and left the guns as
two persons.
where the guns were foudd is & couple of hmundred fe ‘rom the banks
the IIE of the IHE of Sec. 2 Ra2D0 -

spot where the indians used to hold their p put across thae



















Itasca County History - Custer notes = Early Settlers - Big Fork valley

from interview with NELS FELSTET (1)
In the fall of 1893 I started into the woods from LaPrairie which was almost the
last settlement at that time, &s Grand Rapids had only a half dozen cabins, one
store and a saloon ay that time (this repdrted word for word although recorded
facts differ from this,. He probably didn't stop in G«R.) I first went as far north
as 63-24 which is now in Xoochiching County. But I found nothing there that
suited me so I started back. I came by way of Deer Lake where I found the first
white man that I had seen since I had left Farm Camp (Rice River camp). This

logging camp on Deer Creek run by Loper and Rummery. I ate dinner at hhis
camp before starténg on. I finally came to the forks of the Rice and Big Fork
rivers where there was already a settler by the name of "Tom" Neveux who had been
there for about six months {fnewspaper items place him up there spring of 1892.)
He thought it would be nice to have a neighbor so he helped me locate = place

26

about 2 mile and a half from his place. This place is in Sec. 26R.B&-Tp. 61l.
where I have lived ever since. My first winters supplies were bought at at Farm
Camp (Rice River). If I remember right my flour that fall cost me close
per 100 pounds. The Farm Camp was located on the bamks of the Rice RiverThe buildings
looked almost new, like they had not been built more thah a couple of years.
The ends of the loge were still oozing piteh when I first saw it,It was built by Kel
and Deary. The first logs saw on the Rice river were cut there, It was sure a
shame the way they slaughteredt the timber., As I remember they took mostly only
40 foot stuff with at least a 12 inch top,~-what they called boom sticks. The rest

of the tree was left lying in the woods to rot. They would swamp roads to a tree

size to suit them, fell it and haul the whole t®ee to the river. Some
ame here there was still signs of the old Caldwell landing on
g Fork river. This landing was between Harrison's Hill and Dora Leke, near

a large meadow where it is said Caldwell cut hay for his stock. 4 man by the mame

of WALLIE built a store just sbove the landing. There was an old logging road ran

north from the landing to Caldwell Brook. Using this : aldw did & lot of




Itasca County Hist.- Cusber notes - FEarly settlers, Big Fork valley

NELS FELSTET (2)

logging in Pomoroy Township. He logged over most of what is now Pomoroy

township and part of Grattan township. From the amount of logging he did

I think he must have been logging here in 1880 asit must have taken several

years to log all the land he is said to have logged. I knew Dr. Harrison

quite well and at different times I spent several days at his place. This

place was one of the most beautiful spoys along the Big Fork. His place was

only a few miles below the old Caldwell Landing. In fact, I was at Harrison's
place when the State game warden arrested him for killing & moose. He claimed taat
he and a codple of other men were on the river with a light when a moose charged
the boat. He claimed they tried to fight it off with the paddles but they finaliy
had to shoot it to save their own lives., He took the head 66 & man in LaPrairie
to have it mounted. As near as I can find the old Caldwell land on the Big Fork
must have been about where old Wirt was afterward located. The meadows referred
to was probably the HINKEN CREEK meadows.

I think it was at LaPrairie that the Warden got wind of that moose. Anyway they
came and told him they would give him a gertain number of days, I don't remember
Just how many, to appear in Grand Rapids. But he was a fiery old bird and he told
them to heck with the number of days, he was ready to go with them right now,

I don't recollect just jow the thing turned out but at the time it was ssid
the trial cost the State clos e to $700.

It has been told that "Tom" Neveux end I furnished meat to camps. Tom may have Db
but I never did to Apy/dfféuy amounty to anything, although Tam and I did
furnish lots of fish to camps especially to wanigans on the log drives in the
springe Tom and I have seen as many as 25 moose between our places and Harrison
Hill.

The first white woman that I remember of right around here was my wife, whom I
brought in in 1900. As I remember our oldest son Albert was the first white chilg

born here. He was born in 1902. As near as I can remember KNUT BERGUL brought his

family to the Big Fork valley in 18986r 99, I
t was in the




Itasca County Hist.= Custre notes - Early settlers, Big Fork Valley

NELS FELSTET (3)

It was in the winter of 1900-01 after the flood that took out all the hay made
in the valley that Mrs. Bergum peeled "popple" poles and fed the bark to the
cattle to keep them from starving. She had been here a year or two at that time,

Bergums were across the river and upstream from my place.

In the old days the Nett Leke indians used to come down the Big Fork each fall

and go over to Rice and Sauaw lakes and pick rice.
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ITASCA COUNTY HIST. - BiloBraphival - Bonniwell
/

William J, Gibbs was boran {n London, England, June 17, 1860, and was

baptized in St. Pauls church in Londoﬁ, England.
Sir Walter Gibbs was an uncle of William J. Gibbs and left a large estate
in England of which W. ¥, Gibbs is an heir, but ot get this estate he would
have to live in England, and his wife wasn't in favor of leaving America. ¥m .
Je Gibbs came with his parents to America in 1866. Being only six when he came here
there wasn't anywhere on earth wehere he wanted to live but in America. They
came to and established their home at Omro, Wisconsin. W. J. Gibbs went to
Chicago when a young man and clerked in a store there. While there he met and

married Amelia Matilda Ruger on Dec. 24, 1888 at Council Bluffs, Iowa/

In the fall of 1896 owing to ill health, W. J. Gibbs and wife came to
Itasca County, Minn. and took & homestead in 145-25 and in 1901 he established

& store at Bowstring on the same land, then on April 4th, 1902 he established
1910
Bpwstring postoffice and was appointed postmaster there from then until 19091910
at which tdéme he established a postoffice and general store at Inger, Minn.
The Bowstring postoffice was then moved from the Gibbs homestead at Bowstring to
Robert Christie's home at Bowstring. Carl Christie took over the store and post-
office at his fatkers death, and he is still postmaster at Bowstring. The rural
routes are all around Bowstring now so that makes the work much lighter for the
postmaster.

We Je Gibbs became a pensioned postmaster a year agox- 1940, and he still
runs a general store at Inger and hauls all the freight for the store himself
from Deer River to Inger, a remarkable record for a man 81 years old. Mr. Gibbs
says "Bowstring" is the correct way to spell it, not Bow String.

Obtained in an interview with Mr. W. J. Gibbs at Inger, Minn. May 19, 1941.
by Mary Bonniwell.
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Itasca County Kistory - Custer notes - Early settlers- Big Fork Valley
SEVERN HANSON - (1)

In the spring of 1900 I bought the minutes of a piece of land from a
Frenchman in Bemidgi by the name of GAY MINIX. This land I had never seen
but he said one forty was all white pine. They told me there was no use of going to
Duluth to file; that I could file in Cass Lzke by mail. But it took me almost f
four months to get my papers back. 4 Pig ifrishman by the name of lurphy came
up and built me a little cabin. It took us four days to come from Deer River.,
We spent the rest of the summer on the elaim, but when we returned to Deer River in
the fall for supplies some of the fellows there talked me ithto staying in
Deer River that winter and cutting cedar for JOHN RYAN, 28 they told me I was
too short of money to winter dn the homestead. At the time I came here I was the only
settler between Vancefs and Bena except for Frank Calwell. This Frank Calwelkl

located my friend Murphy on & claim for the sum of $50, but when Murphy went

to file he found the land already belonged to some lumber company. Calwell
8 - Rl

had three aons. Qne of these soms was killed fﬁ by Bowstring Joe and his brother
Bowstring Jim. I guesa it was Bowstring Joe who did the killing. But in some
he come clean and got out of ite Czlwell is supposed to have been the first

settler in Kinghurst township. Calwell had been here & long time when I came,

\t the time I came Vance had a herd of close to 40 head of cattle. Calwell alwap
told how he was some day going to be the largest stock man in Itasca County but
he never had over a half a dozen head.

Vance alweys claimed his oldest daughter, Virginia, was the first white ehild
born in Deer Ri first one born in Kinghurst
Caldwell trail was the only trail in here for many years. It come right

our door., After following al

along the east sideo 06 my plage to the ME corner
4o v vayn 3 roaadne b s e » e 4= 3y } 2 Ao ot " s 1
turned east crossing the Rice river on a floating bridge between the Colwell
place and the DAHLQUIST place, it then turned north followi

up through the hardwoods. From the look of this tradl it must

here. The first bridge in the township with county nelp was built




river at the Vance place, SB; of Sec.l5,

BILL EVANS. Just west of the north end of the bridge is where Vance

e business. He dug pit in which an old Indian by the name

his squaw hulled the rice by tramping it with their Reet. It

@

8 then roarted in two big iron ke I have one of the old kettles having

Vance $1.50 for it ade his riece plant, which I think was the first

built gtood on the old site of the pit and

irst postoffice in Xinghurgt was at BertvCong

Popple post office. It wnere the Popple post-office now is mail

came from Bena, genera 0y horeabac I think one of the Congdon the

white child born in Xinghurst Tpe In 1905 0r 19086 the P.0. was moved to my pl

i A

b ¢

trading

Was &
£

or 6 yegrs. It then was moved to Vance's DO8G. yeges

ago last Qugust it was moved to its present location. The first year the mail cmme

from Northome the government would not pay & mailearrier so we took turns going

after the mail. I myself carried the mail 8 years

s four from Bena and four froum
Northome,

MR3. HANSON, by interview,-
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Itasca County History - Indians - Custer notes -

The Custer Sotes on the Itasocs Indians were gotten from the notes off

Indians collected by Gersld Morton, forest ranger, who was stationed at

Cut Foot Sioux Station for the aprroximate period of 1906-1934. He was
interested in legends 2nd stories to be heard among the old timers &nd
made his collections His chief helper scems to have been 2 breed by the
name of "Dave Smith", said to be a step-son of Captain John Smithe This
Dave Smith was a son of & white moan known as Indian Bill Smith whose
Indian wife later married Captain John Smithe Mosbf the data was collected
between 1930 and 1934, Dave Smith got it feom some of the older Indians
but does not alweys state just from whom nor does he give the reasons
why his informants should be deemed reliable. There are many things in
the notes that are correct as to place, person and incident but off on
dates, such as his eatimate on Berallies

One of the most elusive of the evidently authentle data has to do with
the missions that were on Winnibigoshish at one time, These missions are
either some established by Gilfillan or his helpers or by the Ohlo Band
from Oberlin, Ohio. The mention of lirs Wright points to the latter group.
Fave written Oberlin University at Oberlin, Ohio to see if they have any
data on ite There was 2 Presbyterian Semihary connected with that school
about 80 or 90 years ago and the Indian Missionaries evidently came from
there.

The ranger station at Cut Foot was built in 1903. This Sastion has the
original Dave Smith notes and Custer got most of his stuff from these notes
but did not copy them entirely. It is so far from him that I do not Rike to
send him back so I will $ry to get them to send the coples to me for examina-
tion or if this is not possible I will try to get over there myself,

Custer reports that while there he was talking to the assistant ranger and
mertioned the rumored snake mound but the ranger had not heard of it. Later
one of the head men of the Chippewa eouncil came to the Station and this ranger
said they weee having their usual long chat when he thought of the snake mound &

and asked the fellow about it. He says the Indian shut up at once. Acted as 1f he
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had not heard the ouestion and soon left although he usually had to close up
to get rid 6f him., He sald he did not want to press the cuestion when the

Indian acted that way as he dld not want his ill will.

The first logging 1a the Winnibigoshish district was dome in 1896 or 1897.

It was what was know as dead and down logginge A man by the aame of SEELYL too k
this timber out for a Grand Rapids firm. This was on the Pigeon river. Scelye's
contract ealled for +the logs to be in Laske Winnibigoshish before he wcul@ be
paid. It was a year of low water, and the Pigeon had vary little water and

Seelye had to bulld a series of six dams to get the logs down to the lakes This

took time and money and the time came when Seelye was not able to pay his helps

He finally talked the meunl into helping finish the drive so they could get

their money but for a couple of weeks the men lived on moose meat and blue

berries before the job was finished.

LEW HARMAN INTERVIEW -~ I worked on a log drive on the Pigeon river in 1887 or 98.

At the time I was only cbout 16 years old. The drive was run by a man by the name of
Seelye and his foreman was BARNEY MoGINNIS. The camp was located on the west shobe
of upper Pigeon Lake « This was dead and down timber. The logggers then called it
dead and dying timbere. The timber was taken out for some one in Grand Rapids and

the contract saild the logs JJad to be in Winnibigoshish before Seelye was paid.The
drive was held up on accodunt of low water and as the men could not get paid till See |
Jeelye land ed hia logs we had to see the thing through or go without our paye

For a couple of weeks all we had to,eat was moose meat and blueberries. Captain John
Smith of Samd Lake shot the moose to furnish the meate. This was about the time of
the Indian trouble at Walker and the goverament sent a bunch of soldiers up to
propect us from the Indians. They dld not need to go to that trouble as (apt. John
Smith and his band were friendly with the loggers. I remember one of the Lieutenants
knocked one of his men flat for threatening John Smith with his gun.

After the drive was over I went to Deer Riverand tried to cash my check in a
saloons The bartender thought I was just a kid so he took my check and told me
could have all the drinks I wanted but thot he would hot eash the check till later.
I was big for my age and I watched my chance and jerked the check from his hand

and ran for 1t., Some of the men told me I better get out of town as the bartender

was town marshall. So &AL
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g0 after supper I walked up the railroad track to Grand Rapids. Thus I got out of th

the country with both the check and my hides,




-

itasad County Hiathry

Ny

State Auditor of Minuesota, The State Capitol, St. Payl, May 27th, 1941

lira, Mary Me Bonniwell,
Box 422
Deer Liver, liinnesota.

Dear larys

I believe I could write almost a full volume concerning my
recollections and experiences as the son of Cyrus and Minnie King, from
the 2nd of 4April, 1902, when they went into the wilderness north of Deer
River, and for the five years following when we all lived in the one-room
homestesd shack.

Frankly, I don't know exactly how far to go or where to begin.

It appears that mother, having been seriously ill, was told
by her doctor that she should have o complete change of scenery and of
climate. 3ellieve it or not, she was a tiny little thing, weighing only
some mndred and ten to a mundred and fifteen pounds, and so dad, in the
winter of 1901, came up to Deer River and made some investigations concern-
ing homestead property. Doth he and mother were the children of pioneers,
dad having been the first male white ehild born in Middleville township in
Wright County, and mother having been the second daughter of James and
Elizabeth Cooper who settled in Fair Haven, Stearns County, in 1857. In
any event, dad reported back and several of his friends in Wright gounty
declided that they would go along and the group would establish a new colony
in northern Minnesota, “he familief represented were headed by Levi Cochran
of Smith Lake, still living at Big Fork, John “oolen of elano, who was sub-
sequently killed by a falling tree, 9am Gordon of Annandale and his grown
son, William, both of whom are now dead, old Man Lane, whose first nane I
do not now recall, John Rahier of Annandale, his son-in-law, Guthrie, who
was Mike's father, Orville Dakin, who had the biggest feet of any man in
the community, a retired Norweglan sea captain by the name of wenaas for
whose daughter, 4ffie, the post office and town of "Bffie" was suobsequently
naneds You will remember that she married Perry Coffron, and I belleve is
now widowed but still is running a summer resort on the north side of Bow
String Lakes

Subsequently John Peterson and the two Brushsber brothers filed
on claims in 62-26, Out of the originsl group most of them filed in 62«26
although 1 think the Guthrie homestead was in 62-25. Subsequently the chil-
dren of these people attained legal age and took homesteads of their 0vne

Flora Coghran, Mow Mrs. Charles Coolen of 5ig Fork, and her
slster, Forrest, now Mrs. Hjalmar Bjorge, also of 3ig Fork, filed in 62=27.
Also in the original group was an old German by the name of Lorenz who slso
tock a claim there, and a little farther to the south, toward the town of
Big Fork, Fred Johmson and his brother-in-lsw, John Dahlberg, filed on ad=-
Joining claims, Right close to them was another dcandinavian, whose name
I have temporarily forgotten, who filed =lso and grew to great favor in my
boyish eyes by killing a black bear with an axe.
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The polnt of the whole thing is that these people were neigh-
bors, and in many cases friends and relatives of one another, and they all
went in there at approximately the same time. <Lhe Rahiers and Johnsons, the
Dahlbergs, Guthries and Phillipses s8till stay in the immediate vicinity.
Most all of the others are gone, even including those of the second gener-
ation.

We brought our household goods into Jeer River by train and
then reshipped them on the old "gut and liver" north to Purtle Lake. The
winter before dad had built a frame house in sections and had shipped it up
and had set 1t up in the woods. After staying overnight at John Lundeen's
stopping place on the south side of the lake, we loaded our goods on two
sleighs and in company with the Gordons and Billy Rowan, and perhaps others,
started by sled along old tote roads snd portages to Big Fork, thence north
along the old Kinney trail until we reached the big meadows on Borrowman's
Creek, and then we turned off into the wilderness and followed the creek un-
til wé came to the @ordon shagck and subseguently our own,.

One roomed though it was, our house was the only frame house
in the townshipe. € had no schools, no roads and no churches, The first
year after we were there, the men folks of the community got together and
held a "bee" during which time they cleared half an acre of land which they
thought was in Section 16, but which actually was across the section line
in 20==gut down the trees, hewed the logs and built a school house. Dad
taught there all the rest of the time we were up in the woods, the first
year without recognition and without pay. Strangely enough a good many of
the youngsters who went to school while he was there subsequently taught
their own schools., Because of his peculiar ability to teach and make the
teachment stick, not one of his pupils ever failed a state examination, and
almost all of us are exceptionally well founded in educational fundamentals
#flentally. We had no educational frills whatever, but we learned our basid
reading, writing and arithmetic, and our history, geography and physiology
80 well that after thirty years I imagine that most of us have a better ed-
ucational background than our youngsters who have had twice or three times
the opportunities we had,

After we had built the school house, mother developed a Sunday

Sehool program and a Ladies Aid program, and the building became not only
the center of our community activities, but it became the place in which
one or two itinerant preachers, amongst whom was the lumberjack sky pidot
Higgine, came to preach to us. I think it is obvious that there were no
frills to our religious training either. Ve were preached to with the old
fashioned and very wholesome hell fire and damnation theory, and we were so
close to the soil that all of us developed a most significant humility and
tolerance not only amongst ourselves, but for all people,

It is true that we had our little bickerings in the community,
but the very fact that we were so completely dependent upon the forest for
our very livlihood made us probably as completely cooperative as any com=
munity could be. It 1s obvious that we were all very poor. I{here probably
in the beginning were only four or five horses and six or seven cows
amongst all of the families who had settled theree. The milk and butter,
however, that was made was traded around and exchanged, ususlly on a friend=
ship baslis, as was the meat we killed in the woodss With the exception of
bacon and salt pork, probably none of us ate any meat for five or six years
excepting the game we killed and the fish we caughts
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We could grow any kind of vegetables desired, and while moat
of us were poorly clothed according to modern standards, and while there
were patches on the trousers of most of us, we always had plenty to eat and
were to all intents snd purposes more independent than anytime since.

If one family was sick or suffered a fire or an accident, or
something like that, everyone saw to it that they were taken care of, No
one expected thanks, and the charities were glven wholehandedly, openly,
simply, and solely because we wemted to help ome snothers

I rememver instances of mutual helpfulness, willingly and prompte
ly given amongst the settlers in the commnitys It was quite common for
us t0 help one another in the buillding of harms and houses Just as we had
done on the communlty school house.

i remember ome instance wiere dad and Sam and Will Gordon, sud
Zade Coohran, amongst othera, carrying an injured man on a stretcher made
out of a blanket and a couple of poles from about six miles north of our
house olear to 8ig Jork, a distance of perhaps sixteen miles through the
woods. [ remember another time that 8illy Howan fell out of a tree, in
which he was sitting walting for a deer to come into a lick, and broke
couple of ribs and otherwise injured himself so that he couldn't truvea.
He crawled part way to our house where we found hime The next moraning dad
carried nim on his back into Big Fork and the doctors 4s big and hsky as
dad was in those days, he used to grin about that trip and say that it was
"rather tough,

All the familles killed their own meat in the woods and shared it
with thelr neighborse. Many a time the Lanes and Gordons and Cochrans have
orought us over pieces of deer and moose meat, and many & time as a kid I
have lugged my share of meat around to theme I don't belleve that a pounﬁt
of meat was ever permitted to spoil regardless of the weather in which it
was killed, and we never took more than we needed.

The second year we were on the homestead dad started the peti=-
tions and carried the work on through until a road was laid out slmost
straight north from Big Fork for about eight miles, and thence west a mile
north 2 mile and west againe-whioh took in the western part of the township.
Even to this day it is still known as the "King" road, and was the first
regularly accredited highway in the townshlp although other logging roads,
end tote roads, particularly the Kimney trail, had been in use for years,

John Rahlier, Mike Guthrie's grandfather and s civil war veteran,
was given the job of ¢arrying the mail from Big Fork originally to his own
house, which was about four miles east of where we lived, Phat was the
first acoredited mail route in the neighborhood, and subsequently the post
office was established in the residence of Captain Wenaas and the post
office was named after his daughter, Effie. : “munvwww/%apéb

During all of this time Itasca Coun ched from its present
southern bomidler north to Canada. In 1907; however, the county was divided

east and west along the north township line of 62=-26, and Koochiching County
was developed out of the north portion. This division threw the county
comnissioner districts out of balance, and John A. Johunson, Governor, appointe-
ed dad to be commissioner at large pending the redevelopment of the five re-
quired commissioner districts. #rom then on, and until 1922, when he died,
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dad served contimmously &s county commissioner in County Commissioner Dis-
trict Nos. l. He represented the Uounty Commnlssioners corganizatiom, having
helped to organize the group, and was the first president of the Northern
Minnesota Yevelopment Associations During his term of years as county com-
missioner, he developed a plan of a state-wide system of trunk highways which
was subsequently embodied in the so-called "Babcock law", and 13 now in force
and effect in the state,

I think dad worked better then he kmew, for he told me one time
that I would live to see the day when there would be five thousand miles of
hard surfaced highways in Minnesota. We how have almost eleven thousand,

80 then we ses that dad was the first school teacher, and was re-
sponsible for the first highway in the township, Mother end he lived in the
first and only frame house there, and she organized the first Ladles Aid and
the first church and Sunday School was held in the one-roomed log school
house which the commanity had put up in its first community "bee".

Heantime, Fred Johnson had carried in on his back a plough from
Big Fork to his homestead, a distance of about six miles, and the first
furrow that was turned there he turned along the top of an old deserted
beaver dams

I don't recall who brought the first cattle 1lnto the community,
but I suspicion it was either Johmson or John Rahler.

puring these early days John Coolen was killed by a falling tree
as he was ¢learing additional land, and Mike Uuthrie's father was killed,
as 1 recall, when the top chain broke on eome logs going into the Namakan
landings in 62-2D.

Right here I think you could get valuable information from the
old files of the Big Fork Settler, which Saunders at Big fork mst still
have, and obviously ioslund of Grand Raplds must have 2 wealth of informa-
tion as well as Wolfe at Deer Liver in the files of the old "Itasca News",

You might besr in mind that Levi Cochran and his daughter still
live at Big %ork, that Nelson Phillips is at Lffie, and that Dick MeGraw
gtill lives in his original homestead shack built probably in the sptring of
1901--they could give you an amazing background of recollection and exper-
ience,

After dad and mother moved to Deer River, dad established a law
office and immediastely became superintendent of schools. You are probably
as familiar with his work as superintendent of schools as I ames Perhaps
his greatest achievement in that job, outside of the fine educational sys~-
tem he developed for us all, was the work and effort which he put into the
building of a new school building =nd dormitory, which to this day, as far
as I know, is the only institution of its kind in the state. You will re=-
¢all that he has never been given proper recognition for this work, but the
fact remains that his was the ldea and his was the original plan out of whidh
that achool was developed.
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Meantime, as county commissioner he entered into the develop-
ment of a system of roads which brought him the continued friendship and re-

spect of all western JItasca County.

Meantime, mother aided in the development of the original Method-
ist Ladies Aid, and these women, together with the help of 2ll the towns-
people, without regard to religion, developed the plan and raised the money
which built the Methodist Church in Deer River., You will recall that after
dad died, mother became clerk of the school board and served for several
years as matron in the dormitory.

It migit be well to recall that dad was a great believer in self
government and constantly opposed centralization of authority. When he was
chairman of the legislative committee of the state organization of county
comnissioners in 1920, he wrote, amongst other things, the following para-
graph which I quote;

"Let us stand in solid column for the fullest loecal self-
government in town, village and county, using every just
mean8 against the insidious encroachment of the state
upon local rights.n

Ded had been born a Republican, but had been weaned awsy from the
party by the enthusiasm and oratory of William Jennings Bryan, with whom he
became a close and intimate friend, and whose teachments of Jeffersonian
democracy he followed to the day of his death with one exception. He had been
active in Democratic polities, and for years Itasca County was one of the Demo-
cratic strongholds, but the party had seemed to lose its force and effect, and
along about 1918 dad joined with other men of independent thought in the
state, many of whom were Democrats, in the building of a party he thought
would give a greater percentage of representation to the common man, He went
in, therefore, in the original councils of the Farmer-Labor party, and was
its nominee for governor, but left the party and broke with the leaders be-
cause of what he thought was g violation of their trust.

known. He never violated private confidence or a publiec trust. In all the
vears I lived with h#Mand mother, I think I have never sat down with them alone
to any meal. His door was always open to anyone who passed by, and his hogpit-
ality was limited only by the amount he had to gives He was never too busy or
too sick or too tired to go somewhere in behalf of someone else, or to do some-
thing which he believed would benefit his neighbor or his community, His
charities were so great that despite an amazing energy he never acculbulated any
money. He was forever gentle and courteous, and had that indefinable personal-
ity which caused men and women who had mnever perhaps even heard of him to stop
and turn around to look at him as he passed Y e

If greatness is reflected in vision and intellect, in charity and
kindliness, in public service without regard to self, then dad was indeed a
great man,

Through all the years of his life, mother helped him, not only in
the managing of the household affairs, but almost as a personal and confidential
secretary. Ohe was his kindest and most severe eritic, and he laughingly would
say that if he could make a speech that would please her, he knew it was alright.
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I don't kuow that I have even touched
If there be anytuing else, let me know, and in the
whole or in part with whatever changes you may des

With all good wishes, I am

Singerely yours,

dtafford King

SK s DH

I know this was 44“&.: too murriedly o will iz z 1t anyway,




Kiste- from Custer notes -~  Early settlers, Big Fork Valley

from interview with Joseph Lacher, Jr.- November 1941l.

The Popple Post Office has been in my store here on the Popple river singe 21 ye
years ago last August. It was at the same location when Bert Congdon run it but
at that time it was in a private home, The mail has been hauled to the Popple
postoffice first from Bena, then from Black Duck, from Stanley and for the past
few years from Northome. When it first came from Bena the postmaster received
no pay as the mail was gll cancelled at Bena. That is why the address was at one
time Bena when there was a post office here and had been for some time. A4t the
time this township was organized a2 petition was circulated to call the township
"White Moose", but another petition was also circulated not to call it White
Moosey but mentioning no other name for the township. When the petitions came
before the county board it was found that there were more names on the petition
not to use the name White Moose than there were ont the one for the name. But
as no other name was suggested the board did not know what name to give the
township until one of the board members said, "Well, King is the commissioner
there, why not call it Kinghurst? dnd it was so named,

When I built my store hefe the old stegmer "Eveleth" was pulled out of the
water and placed on skids. She was a round bottomed stern-wheeter, owned and
operated by Frank Mil d his wife I don't think she did much towing except to

tow Miller's large house boat. She also served as a saloom. When I first

s aw

her ¢ was 8till in good shape, even her flaga were neatly rolled up and tucked aw
away overhead in the pilot house. Her licuor license was still hanging on the
a neat little boat between forty and fifty feet long with = beam

of 16 or 18 feet. She had since been robbed. First the whistle was stdlem, then
which is too heavy to carry away. If it wasn't it w

My brother Arthur Lacher homestesded & cuarter section in what is now Grattan

township. It was after him that Lacher lake was nsmed. Grattan township was naméd

for a2n o0ld érishman whom éne of the town board members had read dbout in = story

of the civil war.
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Joseph Lacher, Jr. {2)

Probably the oldest clearing and also the first farming in northern Itasca
countywas on the banks of Dora Lake. On this clearing the Indians used to
raise corn. They were raising corn here when the first settlers came in,

This was on the east bank of Dora lake in Sece 1, R.27-Tp.148, On this spot
found & great many o0ld Indian knives and other toold.

Vance was the fathér of the wild rice business in Itasca county. I have
heard him tell how he used to buy a barrel of whiskey each fall to trade to
indians for wild rice. He said that every time he traded or so0ld a quart of
whiskey to an Indian he added a quart of water to the barrel. In this way he
still had a full barrel at the end &f the ricing seasons But it was full of

mostly water, not whiskey. Along toward the latter part of the season it took

lot of this whiskey to have any effect, so they would have to come back and trade
in more rice. Vance told me of old man Stumph starting to his place from the

west. He was following the old Sapidilla trail. He thought that by turning off of t
the trail and cutting across he could save several miles of walking and considerable
time, as it was in the winter., But it was farther through the woods than he

thought and the going was tough. He became lost and finally ran out of chuck,

He had just about given up hope when he ran across an Indian camp on an Island

in Squaw lakesHe tried to make the indians understand that he was only hungry

but they were afraid that he was sick with the smallpox so they would not let

him come into the camp. He finally made them understznd that he was going to
Vance's, so they made him camp away from them and gave him some rice while one of

t
them went to see Vances All that he could tell Vance was "a little man sick", afid

measure Stumph with his hand. Vance thought of Stumph who he had been expecting and

who was late and returned with the indians. He found Stumph propped against a tree
writing what he thought was his last message to his wife.

Thé first bridge in the township was a floating bridge built across the neck of
Rice lake by Caldwell on his old trail. This bridge was ocuite an undertaking for a
man with the tools Caldwell must have had. One span was fixed so it could be
moved to let the boats through.
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in answer to an inquiry about first churches in the Big Fork valley.
was formerly Mrs, Lander Larson, daughter-in-law to Frank
1 who homesteaded on the site of the present village of Bigfork.
lr:rc Jo Ec ‘).) :.1(1‘.."

Grand Rapids, linn. Bigfork
lovs 21

o your letter of Nov. 4 I have been slow in answering. I have been trying

the straight on things you were asking about the churches. The Fredheim
Iutheran church was built in 1910. They had a congregation at that time but I
that they got the lumber from the Art Zaiser saw mill but you can go and
Zaiser in Grand Rapids and she will know. I never heard that they
floated it down river. The Bigfork church was built in 1913. Before the church
we held church in the first achool house (& log one). We mever had church
in any saloon building. This saloon building she is speaking about is the
building where our creamery is. This building was bought by the village of
Bigfork for a village hall, Ve held our Christmas programs in it some times
school was too small, but ﬁﬁ it was one of our saloons at one time. It was run
man named Bill Daley.
This man she e&lls Bigfork slim, I never heard of him. VWe had a man we
called "Slim" but never Bigfork S}im and his name was Fred Potts. I think this
is some more makeup stuff.
any more interesting things to tell you, Jjust
note of it, Hope this will help

you, Write me

YOU.

Yours truly




Hist.~ Bigfork country

rmerly lrs. Lander Larson)
ter of inguiry written to

Copy of a letter received from Mrs. H. G. Lee (fo
of Bigfork. Letter was written in answer to a let
her by myself.

Mr. Je« E. Shaw Bigfork, Dec. 13, 194l.

Grand Rapids, linn.

Dear Sir,-
I received your letter but I have been pretty busy and so slow

answering it. I had to have the Madics Aid and Christmas Party so you will
have to excuse me. Will do better next time, but I will answer any questions

that I can. I did incuire about some of these to make
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Itasca County History = from Custer notes - Logging, Blg Fork Valley Settlers,
INDIANS, Busticoggan.

from interview with FRANS LOGDEEL I (1)

I came to Wildwood township in Nov. of 1912 by way of Northome, them by
team and sled. At that time we packed in most of our supplies from Gemmel
which was closest to us. The old Caldwell trail ran almost by our door. Thistrail
running from the old Caldwell Camp on Caldwell Brook, to where it joined what we
called the Bena Trail (the whéle trail to Bena was usually called the Caldwell
trail) somewhere in Grettan Township. The old Caldwell Camp was located on the

b
south side of Caldwell Brook on the NWg of Sec. 1, R.26-Tp.1Bl, now in Koochiching

countye. There is now little remains of the old Camp but the mound where chief

Busticoggen buried 18 or 19mmen who died with smallpox. This mound is 12 or

14 feet square. It is marked by several large trees, some having cerosses
hacked in the batk and a couple with some form of Indian signs. When I first
saw the plage there was the remains of an old log pen around the mound. It is
sald that these men that were buried by the indians were the men that were left
in camp sick when the rest of the men went out with the drive in the spring

df 1882 or 1883. (The latter date is considered the correct one.)

It is sald that a number of men were also buried by Caldwell during the winter.
It was at this camp that the papers were served on Caldwell, but at that time
most of Caldwell's logs were already in (anade or almost there on the drive.

He also had another camp located on the north side o€ the Broock and a couple

of miles further down the stresm.

Caldwell packed most of his supplies from Bena. From the appearance of the mound
it would seem that the dead were buried in a shallow grave then covered to a consid-
erable depth with dirt taken from around the outside of the mound. 4 few years
after I came here a bunch of us was fighting a forest fire near the old camp site.
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d. We' dug a couple of feet in-
to the mound and found no bones, only ashes. This caused us to think that the
Indians had burned the bodied& before burialy or had placed them in & small out

building of some sort and then set fire to the building, finally covering the
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the remains of the building and all it contained with dirt.

was talking some years ago to a couple of old-timers in this country

I
who claimed to have known Chief Busticoggan wells They told me that Chief
Busticoggan once killed one of his own sons. It seems that this son had done
something for which the Indian penalty was death. Becayse he was the son
of Chief the tribe would not execute hime So 0ld Busticoggan, to uphold

the tribal law and tradition, killed his son with his own hand.
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Homesteading in Northern Minnesota, Itésqz'co. in 1896, (This is a continu~
ation of material already turned in, wnit#en by Margaret Mawhinney, daughter of
D. C. McDougall.)

I took wife with me, she got a job &s cook in the camp, and we coupd be to-
gether., I put up 2 small shack near the cook camp, so we could have our evenings
to ourselves, but we were always longing for spring to come so we could get back
to our homestead. When Johnston drove in and we could load our supplies and
start for home again life seemed almost perfect. While in camp that winter a
young fellow had a violin he wanted to sell, so I bought it from him for eight
dollarse I msed to play the violin wvhen I was a boy so I got busy and practiced
some, and by the time we arrived at the Johnston's home on our way to our home-
stead, we stopped over nite at Johnston's,go after supper dishes were cleared
away, I got my violin out and the young folks began to dance. Johnston's had
three girls and two sons, 4nnie, Edith and Alice, Mel and Mahley, so with some
more young folks who were there that evening we had quite & crowd, and how they
did enjoy the evening. They said "Mack you are a life saver, all the music we
had before you came was the mouth organ and Jew's~harp, ﬁiﬂ now we will have
real dances.," A4nd how to get the neighbors together was the next thing we had
to decide. So Mel Johnston suggested they fire three shots in rapid succession
to call the dancers together, and Johnston's house being the largest was to be
our meeting place for the present.

Mel said he would come over the portage to the end of the lake to give the
signal., We got together at least once a week, sometimes oftener, and how we did
enjoy the summer time, it seemed to fly along, and winter was upon us all too
soon, and we had to decide on what to do to replenish our supplies.

Quigg and MoGowan were putting in a camp at Cut Foot, so I again got a job
as foreman, and Sophia decided to stay on the homestead and take care of our
stock herself. I could come home week ends, and the boys from the camp attended
our week end mmm dances, The winter passed so rapidly, we were sorry when the
Sspring thaw came and camp had to be abandoned. One of the boys in the camp had
brought a puppy to camp with him in the fall and he was the play boy of the camp
life. The boys taught him all kinds of tricks, and among them was to sit up and
box back at them when they made a pass at him, <*hey named him Boxer, so when we
were breasking camp the young chap who owned boxer said, "Mack, don't you want a
dog? I haven't a good place to keep him, and he is such & nice dog I would like
to know he had a good home." I was glad to get the dog, as I would never have any
fear about Sophia being alone when Boxer was with her. I brought him home, proud
as punch of him, and in a few days he and Sophia were inseparable friends. He
proved to be very useful, as well as lots of company.

We got another cow that summer, we now had two cows, and Boxer would bring
them home every day. Sophia would open the door and say “"Boxer, do you hear
the bells? He would stand with his head cocked on one side and listen. Then,
when he got the sound of the bells he would look up, as much &s to say "Shall I
g0 get them?" Then Sophia would say "Bring them in, Boxer®, Away he would go.
He was always successful in his hunt, and as proud 2s a peacock to be praised for
a job well done.

I cleared some more land that spring, borrowed Johnston's pony and plough,
80 with the team I managed to cultivate the cround and get it in good shape for
the seed. I bought & hand cultivator, so wife and I could keep the ground in
good shape. We had & very good crop that year, and I was able to sell all I
had raised to Quigg and McGowan, They were running camp at Cut Foot again, and
I got a job as foreman, This was my fourth winter with this firm. Wife atayed
on the homestead again and did the chores as she had done the previous winter,
but she had Boxer to keep her company.
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Homesteading in Northern Minnesota. (Bonniwell)

Life went on as ususl, week end dances and get togethers were the highlights
of our lives, We looked forward to those dances all week, and hailed the week
end with gladness in our hearts,

George Johnston's got the second pony that next summer, and Mel and Mahley
would go thru the trails like young Indians. We could hear them coming long be-
fore we could see them, They both had the best pair of lungs any two boys ever
had. They were both fine fellows and we were always glad to see them, They also
had a birch bark canoe and they portaged it into Little Jesse lake. They used to
come paddling along, singing like troopers, One day Mahley got the canoe first,
and Mel (or Sammy as Mahley called him) was still talking to us at the door.
Mahley kept calling him to hurry, hurry, and at last after successive calls, Mel
started to run as fast as he could, down the hill to the lake, and went out on
some square timbers I had for a dock. He jumped into that birch bark cance, and
he landed so hard his feet went thru the bottom of the canoce, and he started
walking off with that canoe as if it was all part of a day's work.

I langhéd ma so0 hard wife thought I would have a spasm. We went fishing
that evening and found the old canoe abandoned a few rods down the shore., I
8aid to wife, "Well, that's the closing chapter in the life of that cance."™ Life
was never dull with those two boys around.

This being the fourth summer on the homestead we decided we needed to en-
lerge our cabin. We built on another room, 12 by 14, of logs, and split out
shakes to take the place of shingles., When this was finished we were lots more
comfortable and less crowded. Charlée Tufts made his home with us when he wasn't
working in camp, I also cut poles and sharpened them and drove them into the
ground to make a chicken yard, because the skunks were hard on our chickens.

I had gathered a lot of hay wire so I used this to tie the upper end of the the
poles together. This made a very substantial fence. We had fifty young chick~
ens and about 25 old hens, I bought two little pigs that spring, so we had &
nice start on our farm.

I said to wife "If I only had a good heavy team now, we would be all set."
And in a few days the opportunity presented itself. A young fellow had brought
a team to camp from near Grand Forks. The breakup came very unexpectedly and he
was left stranded with his horses at camp. He offered to sell them to me at &
bargain, I was glad to get the team and harness, They were a nice team of
Bays. He called them Bird and Rowdy. I had this team for many years, and
they lived their last days on the farm they helped to clear and get under culti-
vation,

The Minneapolis and Rainy River Railroad were building grade and extending
their grack further inte the forest each year, and in 1901 they were loading
timber at Coal Dock, (Later called Mack for Duncan GC. MecDougalls, ), and the rail-
road was now only 5% miles from our home. During hunting season we kept hunters
at our cabin and did guiding for thems There were slso many fishermen came to
our place.

We soon had a nice business, and this being the only place available for
people who wanted to get into the deep forest we always had our place fulls
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Homeateading in Northern Minnesota. (Bomniwell),

About 1900 I built & bunk house, and this was almo full of pay guests. With
the aid of my new teak I cleared more land, and in the winter of 1901 I decided
to log some timber on my homestead. The railrosd put in a hoist on the bank of
Big Jesse Lake, and I could haul my timber across the lake, which only made a
mile and a half haul. I could make several trips in a day, I had six men work-
ing for me, and I did very well,

The winter as usual went as if on wings, and our usual get-togethers were
the only contact we had with social affairs.

That spring while working tn the field, 2 young fawn came into the clearing.
Wife and I caught him and fed him some warm milk, and he grew like a weed and lost
his spots before the summer was over. He became a great pet, and sometimes a
pest. If the door of the shack was open he would Jump up on the bed and go to
8leeps Wife didn't like this idea so well, so we always tried to have the door
closed. But one day just after dinner, I was taking a rest before going back to
work, Wife had gone out to look after her chickens and the door had blown open,
The deer came in and saw me lying there and jumped and landed with all four feet
in my stomach. I thought I was about to be killed, but he looked so innocent and
full of mischief, I hadn't the heart to chastise him as he deserved,

He was always with me wherever I went, and many times was a perfect nuisance;
but at that he was a lot of company. When I went out to hunt, he would mingle with
the wild deer, and after a while he would get near me., I could always tell by
the sound of his little bell where he was located. He acted as if he knew I
wanted those wild deer near, and would always get where he would be protected.

Our crops brought lots of deer into our clearing, and we could have fresh
meat whenever we wished; and who, I would ask, had a better right to them than
the settlers who fed them?

I put up hay every year from the wild meadows, and what I couldn't use for
my stock I could always sell to the camps. All this made a small income. Our
pay guests were becoming more nunsrous, so in the summer of 1904 we decided to
build & frame house. It was a nine-room house, and we had guests enough to keep
this house full the year round.

The years rolled along, the same routine of work, the garden and stock
tending filled our days, I logged during the winter. I bought George Arscott's
homestead in 1909 and logged the timber on it. I now had acquired four hundred
acres of land in 145-25, sections 10 and 11, Our buildings were on Lot 1, sec., 10.

The summer of 1909 C. M. Xing was commissioner in District One. They shipped
in a dredging outfit, put it on a floating platform and started to work four
miles north of Deer River and made a ditch across the nine mile bog., This was fin-
ally smoothed out and a road bed made in the summer of 1910, the first outlet for
us homesteaders in Bowstring township, After being on our farms eighteen years,
without a summer read. We were all very happy, and from now on farming was very
much easier. We could come to Deer River and get back home again the same day;
quite a difference from the two and one-half days each way, as it was when we
had to make the trip by boat,.
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Mrs. Wm., McCaffery (Formerly Mrs, 4, 4, Hall))

Mrs, MoCaffery's father came to Itasca County in about 1891, He was foreman
on the steel gang, When the Great Northern first put in the railroad. They
lived along with the first settlers coming in with the railway. To Mr. A. 4.
Hall goes all honors in the building of Warba, He worked not only for himself
but for the good of the people of the commnity. Mr. A. A. Hall was also a
crulser and a surveyor in the early days,With this knowledge as a surveyor he
1aid out the town of Warba. He bought the land from Frederick Iﬂ/ﬁfﬂﬂjﬁl '
Weyerhoeuser Co. In ﬂ 1901 he bought a saw mill from Tom Feeley (One of the
earliest settlers, and his name Feeley was adopted as township name,) In 1910
he took in Mr. Johnson as partner and called it the Leaf Lumber Co.

In 1902 the first bridge was built across the Swan River between the sawmill
and town. In 1903 he built the store owned now by 8. Carlson, and the building
what is now the phone offices In the same year he built the large house on the
East side of the river, As the town began to grow a bank was needed, so ir.

Hall built a bank with Mr. Mclarty as the first banker.

All the honor of the Verna Brick yard goes to Mr. Hall. Notieing the strange
formation of clay Mr, Hall took samples to Duluth for analysis and found out he
had material for brick manufacturing, 5o after men had tested the ground for
quantity of material and as soon as he got reports on the land he built the
brick yard, which did a flourishing budiness and employed a few men for ocuite
a few years.

He also asked the GUreat Northern for a depot in 1911, which was built
the same year,

In 1898 Mrs, MeCaffery (formerly Mrs Hall) rode the first excursion train
from Grand Forks to Juluth. This was the first passengef train to travel froa
Grand forks to Duluth. iire Hill gave a pen with his picture on it to everyone
who rode the first train., Mrs. MoCaffery said she often went to logging camp
dances and had some very nice times, but the mosquitoes were almost unbearable
in the early days,

Mr. Hall called the town Sebi which is said to mean Swan River in Indian
languages. He later changed to feeley, then later to Warba.

Source; Interview with urs, McCaffery, May 2, 1941.




interview with I L McLean

Bergum must nax e he Big Fork valley about 1856 as his homestead
shack looked to be five or six years old when we came in, 190l. 4t that tiume
he had just finished a new house. This new house was sbout 20 by 40 feet. His three
children were all of school age when we came nere. The daughter is living sdmewhere

Las8t

near the Repids now, recall her fi¥df name. She was the youngest of t
the three. W0 boya are h des n the winter of 1900-1901 lirs. Berguu
peeped "popple™ poles whieh the echildren cut, to feed the bark to the cattle., In this
save all of the cattle. They had lost their hay in high

shape. The next spring they used the pe

Oomr

have since been told that in Sweden it is not unusual to winter

stocikk on “popple" bark., QOne old Swede told me he had tried it in this country but

he ecould not get the cattle to eat it.
Fred has a p re of the children who attended the B wn Also some

other pictures taken in the early days.of carly s ‘ nts here in Big Fork
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Itasca County Mistory - Horthwestern Part - Yuster.
Interview with Mrs. Ollie Lills.

“Yame in 1897 or 1898 from end of steel at Deer Hiver, from then on we
ecame part way afoot, part way by wagon, and part way by sled. 0ld atopping
place known as Jugout was by Junbar on Jeer Liver & Brldge road, fifteen miles
from ‘Jashington camps

Flelds ran a store at Bridge, charged 15,00 a hundred pounds for flour,
45400 for a meal at his hotels Shimmer ¥orn (Schermerhorn) trail was so named
because it ran by the old Shimmer Horn homestead. It branched off at Dunbar,
and went to Bridge.

“Brush Shanty" in Sece 7, on line between Alvwood & lMoose Park township.

It used to take a week each way with a team and wagon to Deer LRiver.
One swamp down by Junbar was four miles across, They had to pull the wagons
acroa3s with block and line. Six hundred pounds was all the load that we could
bring back.

We lost one child soon after we came. ../e never knew what was the cause,
as we could get no doctor. /e think probably it was pneumonia,

/@ went and saw the mound at Dora lLake. ¥e talked to Indians at Squaw
Lake, and they said it was not bullt by the “hippewas, as there was lots of
pottery, and the Vhippewas said they had never made any pottery. A4in oak
tree twenty-two inches through stood on the top of the mound.

Round Lake fanger Station is right where the old washington Camps were
when the road was first put in. Flemmings was the first stop, H. Shears Cut
Ty next Dugout at Junbar, next our place, next place Dexter. e could not
homestead the land here when we came., e squatted a year or so first. The
Indians had places at shallow Pond and at Rice Lake, where they Jerked moose
meat, uome of these places were 100 feet longe.

«“e used to go to #rank Vances to pick blueberries. Chief Bob losemo says
he was only a small boy when the country here was burned over. Briddi was
first post office. We got weekly mail almost as soon as we came.

The year of the big flood, 1900, was the time flour sold for 1lb5¢ per
pound at Bridji.

The firat school was in 1903, on KE of NE, Sec. 32, T. 149-29, wWe lived
in NW of IW, Sec. 7, +s 149-28, First teacher was a Miss Pendergast.

I have seen as many as nine moose in Shallow Pond at one time.

After the country here began to settle up the white men would not let
the Indians come in here to hunt. iy huBband had gone to Deer River for
supplies. Three Indians came to the door. Ihey said my husband had told them
they could hunt on his place. +hey counted on their fingers to show me they
wished to stay four dayse. I told them yes. I managed to always feed them first,
Until one evening one of them got lost. He didn't get in until about 18300 o'clock
at night. I got up and got him his supper. They thought that was grand.
0ld Cyrus King was the man that could have given zﬂi{ the history. He would
start out somewhere to see someone, if they couldn't drive there with team
he would tie up his team and walke He had all of the township roads cut out,
although most of them he never got finished.




Itasca County History = Northwestern Part = Cuaters

Mrs, Ollie Mills - (2)

I remember the 1898 Indian uprising. Iy husband was working at the
Winnibigoshish dam. *“he children and I were alone, It was 1l miles to the
nearest neighbore The oldest boy melted up everything that would make bullets.
Not much powder, thoughe They had a Gattling gun at the dam. The young soldiers
at Deer River swelled up so big that my husband said God'a overcoat would not
make them o vest, =~omeone in Deer HKiver got old Captain John Smith to give a
Chippewa war-whoope +he young soldiers ran over women and everyone trying to
find shelter,







@Given to Mary Bonniwell May 8, 1941, by Elmer Varner, and he got it from Fred
Willman. Mr. Willman got it directly from Bob Mosomo.

ABrOBIOGRAPEY OF BOB MOS

Bob losomo was born previous to 1850 on the east side of Lake Winnibigoshish.
He descended from a long line of Chippewa Chieftains. MNis great great grandfather,
Chief Gah-Guay-Waun (meaning Porcupine Skin) was leader of a tribe of Chippewas
extending from Canada down into Northern Minnesota. At his death the chieftainship
passed to his son Mah-Maun (meaning to left up). After he died Bob's grandfather,
Wah-Nah-Cha (Dirty Skin) became chief. Wah-Nah-Chay frequently fought with the
Sioux. (He killed and scalped one Sioux by the mouth of First River.) He used a
gun which he got from Canada, A gun at that time was worth one fish, ten mink,
one beaver, and one bear. At Wah-Nah-Chay's death, the chieftain-ship was taken
over by Bob's father whose name was Me-Ge-Cey (BEagle), It was next given to Bob's
brother, Chief Mosmo, and finally to Bob,

The first years of his life, Bob mede his home near a trading post at the mouth
of First River. The site of this trading post can still be made out. It was here
that Bob first saw a white man, The trading post was run by a half-breed by the
name of Zun-Zway. In the spring and fall traders came to First River, via the Mis-
sissippi River, in large 28 ft. birch-bark canoes. Ilhey usually came in groups of
three or four cances at a time. Dob often camped 2t the present location of the
Cut Foot Sioux Ranger Station.

Bob's book education was limited, There was = mission school either at Pidgeon
River or Havens Point., Sob, however was too small to attend.

Bob and his family used to range up to Lake Vermillion, up to Lake Itasca and
down to Little Falls, also to Leech Lake portaging from Bena across to Portage Lake,

etc. Leech Lake was dangerous because you had to go across,

4 white man wanted to go to Lake Vermillion to see his father who was sick,
Bob guided the man and made the trip in five days on snow shoes, grinding and
breaking trail for a dog team. For this work Bob received clothing from head to
foot, a blanket and $25,00,

The turtle mound on the portage between Little Cut Foot Sioux Lake and Bowstring
River was built when Bob's grandfather was a small boy., The Chippewas later made a
snake about 500 yards north of this turtle. The Sioux had many medicine dances
around the turtle. They put tobabeo along the turtle and fed him tobaceo and smoke,

u= ¥ AST TIONED FQUR G TIONS

The Great Spirit told Naunesake what to name children when they made medicine.

The Chippewas start on a war-path south to fight Sioux. They had always fought.,
When Chippewas got to turtle they stopped. Head man of Chippewa sat on head of
turtle. They had a big stone for the head and talked about what they would do to
the Sioux. In night head man of Chippewas talked with Great Spirit to find out where
Sloux were. When he had finished he said he had been told that they saw where they
were going-- coming back tomorrow. He told his men that early in the morning three
men should go to lake and then riwer and then another lake. They should go there
and find a rush island, and on rush island there is a swan., He also told them that
if they found a swan on rush island that everything would come out as he had dreamed.
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The next morning three men started out. They got to Little Cut Foot Sioux
Lake, followed First River and when they got to lake found swan on rush island,
He told his men when they got to swan his men should start south and #0 by Big
Turkey Point (Portage). (Point in Cut Foot Sious Lake). “hen they got to Big Hill
he told them to watch out for hill. They pulled cance in to point and erawled
over portage. There were Sioux on other side doing same thing. When Chippewa
looked three Sioux peeped out. Both parties were surprised. Both parties fired
at where they thought each other were,

Chippewas noticed no shots coming and looked and saw Sioux were out in water
in canoe retreating. Iwo Sioux looking backward and one paddling, Chippewas said
to each other, "Let's get our cances and chase them." They started out to chase
Sioux. Sioux shot and Chippewas shot. “hen Sioux got to Hush Island near mouth
of First River, Chippewa saw one Sioux was killed. When Sioux got to Rush Island
they threw dead Sioux on “ush Island, went to beach and put canoe on backs and rand
away. “hen Chippewas got to Island ran to dead Sioux, scalped him and found that
both forefeet had been cut or frozen off,

They did not shoot any more. Looked baeck for rest of Chippewas who were coming
up. Saw Sioux were down on point in body. Chippewa went back to main body of party
and head man sald no more fighting. They had had enough. After this, the name of
the lake was changed from Say-Sah-Fay=-Gay-Man-Ug (Lake going all over many arms)
to Kees-Ki-3id-A-Bain-A-Egan.

The Chippewas changed head on turtle. Sioux made turtle first. Turtle was
placed where they met Indians, Used to be two snake mounds north of turtle. Lots
of marks on tree. Regular stopping place inssmich as it was on main portage.










ITASCA COUNTY HISTORY - Bonniwell.
Biography. PFred Nason.

Fred Nason was born in Grand Rapids February 20, 1876, near
where the old Potter House stood, on the banks of the Mississippi river. This
was on the South side of the river, not far from where the Itasca Hospital
now stands. This building (the old Potter House) was made of hewn logs, and
still stood in 1940, Allen Nason was the father of Fred Nason; he owned a lot
of land in and around Grand Rapids. He sold the blo§pk where the old Central
School building now stands; and a clause was inserte wherein this property
can be used only for school purposes,

This has become a very valuable property as it is now in the heart
of the town and would be a grand place for a business block had this clause
not been inserted,
= 3

Mrs, Barney Finnjgan was Fred's first grade school teacher. Her
name was Miss Maddy. She was the second teacher in Grand Rapids. The first
school in Grand Rapids stood about where the depot now stands, it was a log

Je Bs Chatterton logged off all the timber around Grand Rapids
and over to and around Trout Lake. He offered to deed all this land to
Allen Nason, after he had removed the timber. Allen said, "What do I want
with this land? You have taken everything that is valuable to anyone." How
little he knew about how valuable that land could be, with its iron mines
and towns springing up all over.

dllen Nason sold two lots where the new First National Bank
now stands, for $40,00 to Charley Marr,

In order to get across the river they used to ferry across near
the Potter House. There were a lot of boats there, so when anyone wanted to

cross, they would call and someone came across for them.
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Fred Nason, Bena, Minn,, May 22, 1941,
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istory -from Custer notes = ELRLY GGING, Big Fork Valley

from interview with ELMER ROSWELL PIXE - (1)

I came to Itasca county QOct. 9, 1896 with Hartley lMcGuire. This Hartley
MceGuire was a brother to Niles licGuire who sold stock in a gold mine to be
located somewhere near where Northome now is. We came by wey of Duluth, on
the old Duluth and Winnipeg as far as where the town of Coh2sset now stands,.

At that time I think it was known as the Lelats spur or something like that.

I have been seversl tames over the old 8apidilla trail in early days. This
trail ,followed the Duluth and Winnipeg survey from Deer River to about where
Alvwood is., From here the s 2V geveral different routes. One survey went
by way of the Red Lake narrow: ward the Canadian bporder. Another ran over
toward where Fosston is.

In the early days I knew a cousin of Caldwell., At the time this cousin
lived in Bemidji. He told me much of Caldwell., He said Caldwell wes a ¢ivil
engineer and from what I have scen of his trails and camps, I don't doubt it.
His headquatrters were in Aitkin. From here he packed to Bena. From Bensa up
to Caldwell Brooke The old trail when I first saw it was guite clemr. He seemed to
have a sixth sense or something of the kind that helped nim to follow ever
little ridge or bit of high ground as far as possible and then to cross a s
swamp or low ground at its narrowest point. lany of the swamps were corduroyed
although in many places he did not have to corduroy, but if he had crossed a few
rode eithervto the right or left he would have had to corduroye. In my work &
a cruiser in the early days I had occasion to,use this old trail a gr
The trail left Bena, crossing the narrows between Big snd Little Winnie |
(Winnie is short for Winnibigoshish) cutting over almost to the shore of
Bowstring Lacre, following it within a mile or so of the shore up paat 8and Lake,
Rice Lake and Dora Lske, erossing the Brook a couple of miles north of Dora lake,
Here at the crossing of Windigo Brook was the longest single stretch of

corduroy on the entire trail. This stretch of corduroy was over a cuarter of a

<

mile long. At this crossing was afterwsrd located Will Long's camp. From the

crossing the trail angled north-esst till it hit his camp on Caldwell Brook.




2

Itasca County History - Logging - Big Fork Valley.
Elmer Roswell Pike - (2)
The camp was located in the NW of sm;, Secel, Re26, Tp.l5l. The camp was so elose
to the corner of the section as is possible, Some of the buildings were in esach
of four edjoining sections, A man I knew in Big Falls by the name of Swan Sw
told me th2t he had driven oxen for Caldwell at this camp. He also told me that at
the time the attachment papers were served on Caldwell that most of nis logs
were already in Cansda or nearly there, as the papers were served after the ice went
out in the spring. Most of these logs were at least forty feet long with & 12
ineh top. They were being used to bind booms of logs together on the lakes,
Caldw also had & landing on the Big Fork river. He logged not only in Wildwood
ship but also in Grattan township., Most of the logs from Grattan township
put directly into the Big Fork river somewhere between Dora lake and Wirt.
In the year of the Spanish-Americen war, McGuire and I started at Pokegams Leke
with 2 canoe. We followed the ilississippi river to Lake Winnibigoshish from where
we followed a small creek emptying into the NE sid of the lake. We followed t
this creek almost to its head, from where we portaged to Bowstring. As I remember
it , this portage could not have been much over & mile long. It showed evidence
of having had lots of use. It was my first trip inte this part of the woods, but
McGuire seemed to know ewery little ereek. We crossed the Bowstring into Sand
lake into Rice lake then into Dors lake following close to the east shore into
Windigo bay and finally into the Big Fork river. This we followed till we came
to TOLERSON'S rapids. This rapids is fifteen or twenty miles upstream from
Big Falls or what was then called RIPPLE. At the head of the Tolerson Repids
old portage to the foot of Deadman's Rapids on the Little Fork,
ge ran right past where camp 5 afterward stood. )
the stream finally into Vermillion Lsce crossing it to Tower and
we took the old Vermillion trail to Duluth. This trip took us 2 little o
The old portsge from the Blg Fork to the Little Fork was one
the main portages at that time. It was well cut out, wide enough for any kind

packing and mosatly runningbon high ground.

/hen I first eame in here there were lats of places that at this time £0 by

= an

different names. Haupt was first called Dexterville. Qrth was first




notes

Magzie P.0Oe, Gemmel was firat called Stoner and Grattan was called Pine Top P.O.
Pat Agnew was the first man to improve the Rice river for logging purposes,
sold out to Kehl and Deary. Kehl was & g saw=-mill man from
They sold ta the Xeewatin luuber Co.
Caldwell's first road to the Brook was built in 188l. The place where Busticog
buried Caldwell's men was on the site of the old or first camp. He buried twenty
or twenty two men here, besides what men Caldwell himself buried during the winter.
At the time the Indians buried Caldwell's men the ground was still too
frozen to do much digging so the men were buried in a shallow grave. The

grave was then inclosed by a log pen which was then filled with dirt dug from

outside the pen, the whole thing being covered with s, forming a sort

of roof ,

supposed to have been done to keep the wolves and other animals out. There is

least six trees surrounding the grave or mound that bear marks cecut into

their

bark. Three or four of them have crosses, the other have some sort

some

gizns cut into them.

Big Fork for his stock, just across the river
2o Caldwell’s cousin says Caldwell went to Canada after he
nis logs out, never returning to the United States. He used
came out of Canads and the old Canadian
stealing timber on this side of ine. This frailcame from somewhere
in the neighbornood of where Mizpah now is

township betweeh sections four and five, then up

boundarye




Itasea County History = Big Fork Valley - Custer.

POOL.
I came to Itasca County in 1906. The first year I was here I logged
million feet of pine, four million feet for the Three I Lumber Co.
This was at Janes, t was the nicest piece of pine I ever saw. We wasted
nothing. If a tree broke we picked up every piece, down to four feet long.
I toock out two million feet for Three I on Lake Rainy. The rest of the eleven
million feet I took out for Jack O'Connel at Fox Lake.
I was logging on Turtle Lake when the Arnold Yards burned at what is
now known as the Four Corners or Talmoon., It was on the night of July 4, 1906
or 1907. The reflection of the light on my window awakened me. At first I

thought it was only some lumberjack who had started a big bonfire, but the longer
I looked the more it looked like more than a bonfire. $o I put on my clothes and
walked down. When I arrived the whole Arnold Yards were afire. We had a num—

3

ber of Russell ca } ya and I hated to see them go up in smoke. I knew
I got together a bunch of my men and

to push the cars out of the yard. They were about all that was saved.
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The Indians say the Pigeon Lakes and river were so called by the Indians
pegause of the wild pigeons that once came here by the thousands each spring
to nest, until about 7O pears ago when they disappeared and came L0 MOre.

The Indians have no explanation for the disappenrance of the birds that once
figured so largely in thelr spring food supplye

Several years ago (eo. Himman (HINMAYX) who now resides in Clairmont, Calif.
visited Cnss Lake and mentionsed that his mother onee worked s¢ an Indian
vission on the north shore of Winnibigoshish, for & ile wright about 1850,when
she was a young girl. (There is a letter to Horton, ranger, at Cut Foot Sicux
Ranger Station verifying this).
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. County History - Custer notes - early settlers - Big PFork Valley.

AUGUST SCHOGREEN (1)

I did not come in here so early myself but my father and one brother were
here a long time before I came. Severn Hanson located me. 0ld Vance (Frank Vance|
was probably the férst white settler in this township but I think BERT CONGDON
boy was the first white child born here. Irene Vance was born after her folks
came here and before the Congdon boy but lirs. Vance went to Deer River before
the girl was born. Vance was the firat one to try picking rice by machinery. The
ELI PRICE, a flat bottomed stern wheel steamer owned and operated by Dune Price

was bullt at Cut Foot Sioux and was used there and on Jianibigoshish to tow

logs and haul freight. She was 100 feet long and twenty feet wide. She
afterward brought to Bowstring Lake he ran a number of years as far north

1orth end of Dora lake.

firststeam boat on these waters was ow and operated by Ed Wallis. At one

time she went as far down the Big Fork river as Qirt. She was used for towing

logs and hauling freight. Most of the logs she towed were taken to

wstring. She was built on Turtle lake and was 40 feet long and

located in Sec. 15, Re27~Tp,149, This is also where the bridge was
0ver. lrene Lake and Virginia Lske were named for
are in Kinghurst township. The mlls of
eamboats are now at the Schogreen dam, Lot 6, Sec. 26, Re27-Tp.l49.
The place where Stanglin dug into the Indian grave is near where Little Dora

Mallard Bay joine It is the o0ld Art Lacher place,
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fork Valley - Custer.

New York City.

number of settlers who j d up on eclaims having good

U

timber, for timber companies. I remember. In fact there were two

WO men took 2ims adj ing each other, on the north and

They built 2 ;tle shacl the line between the claims,

was not over four had neither door

they spent on the tent. vas said the Itasca

Lumber Co. paid them a hundred dollars k them to prove

up, They proved up in fourteen months, so h asca Lb Co. fourteen

hundred dollars 2 qguarter for

-
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'”l¢,1u; among the OJjibway in this te itory was at Moose Point on Pokega

Lake noont one hundred years ago These missionaries stayed at kegama lake for

about ten years. They then came on up the Mississi
school on the north shore of Lake Winnibigoshish on the site where the Pigeon
pties the lake At that time there was ] n
=ha Pi:con River The older Indians still fer to this mission on
oceon River as Sha-Gun- Sh h-Nah-We-Gah-Mig, which is the present Indian trans-

ation for ou fpiSCOpal Church.

school must have been at the mouth of the
possibly just west of Stony Point. There w a large village of
on the high banks at ¢ mouth of Pigeon River an est of Stony Point,
em only natural for the missionaries to establish thelr mission at
There was also a large village at the mouth of First
Hudson Bay Trading Post. However, Bob Mosomo states
i ! this point on First River,
would be the mouth of Pigeon

Iuﬁiﬁﬂﬁiiinﬁﬁuﬁiﬂh;uﬂuiJmimﬂﬂa_aimuuLQnu@uuLJ&ﬁmsi Mrsid John Johnson (Indian,
age 67 years (1933)), and her u;ot 1er, Geo. Fairbanks (Indian Age 65 ;u;ra, lvuu).
Mrs. Johnson and her brother c‘=<:=1: both state that their father William
Fairbanks, now dead, had & trading post &t Ravens Point on the west side of Lake
Winn _ i | at ti ime when the 1d chur were established there
in 18 doth state it was an ‘f' m¢d51on, and they attend the school when

they




ITASCA COUNTY HISTORY - Bonniwell.
Charlie Seelye. Biogrephy. May, 1941,

Charlie Seelye was born in Wayne County, Maine, and came to
Grand Rapids about 1872, He met and married an Indian girl of seventeen
years, whose name was Maggie Aspinwall,A This was in 1874. She was born in
1857 four miles east of where Grand Rapids now stands, on the bank of the
Mississippi, across the river from what is known as Seelye Logan, Charlie
and Maggie had ten children: Mila, Ella, Jennie, Sage, Walter, Heary, Iuecy,
Mary, Maggie, and Annie,.

Mrs, Seelye, Mary, Lucy and Walter are the ondy ones living
at this time, and they all live at Bena.

Seelye Point on Winnibigoshish Lake was named for Charlie
Seelye. He logged the dead and down timber, and hauled rock from the Point
acrosa the ice to build the government dam at Winnibigoshish. Charlie Seelye
homesteaded at what is known a# Seelye's Logan, four miles down river from
Grand Rapids. Their first child, Mila, was born there, also several of the
other children. Then they moved up to Bena and logged & lot of the dead and
down timber around Bena and Winnibigoshish Lake. Charlie died at Bena in
1911,

Source; Interview with Mrs., Charlie Seelye and Mrs. Lucy Seelye Lyons, Bena,
May 22, 1941,
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Itasca Uounty History = Bonniwell.

John Skelly was born at Glemgary, Ontarlo, Canada. He came to
Leach Lake in 1882, and worked on the Leach Lake Dams While working there
on the dam in 1882 they had many Indians working on the dam, and an epidemic
of small pox broke oute The Indians in a panic wanted to abandon camp.
The only way they could keep them in camp was to have the militia come up
from Fort Ripley to keep order and enforce a much needed quarantinej less
strenuous methods the Indians would not heeds There were 29 Indians who
died from smallpox before the epidemic was checked.

In the spring of 1883 John Skelly came from Leach Lake down the
Mississippl to where Cohasset now stands, It was night by the time he reach-
ed there and the roar of the Pokegama Falls was 80 great he decided to camp
on the river bank until morning. The Falls were where Pokegama dam now
stands. He drew his canoe up on the bank, turned it over, and took his
blankets and made his bed under the cancee It rained all night, and the
wind blew a hurricane, 8o the conditions were not so pleasant, but at that
he had a fair nights sleep, as he was dog tired.

John cruised and worked all through Itasca and Cass Counties,
He still has the old compass he did all his oruising by. John started on a
cruise from Brainard to Leach Lake, a mere jaunt of 90 miles. He got lost
and his food supply got low, Finally he came to an Indian encampment, and
bought fifty cents worth of wild rice from thems It was only & handful, but
when he cooked it up he said that was the best meal he had ever eaten, He
was thankful for that rice, even though the Indian was a shrewd one. He
travelled on, following the Indian traila, and came out where Sena now stands.

John Skelly still has some of the dishes in his home in Cohasset
that were used in the Palmer House at La Prairie. The dishes are in very good
condition after all those years of uses. The Palmer House was torn down and
moved to Deer River by Churchill in 190l. He rebuilt it at Deer River and
called it the Churchill Hotel.

Among the first loggers were We Lo Torry and Libby. They were
logging on a big socale, when John Skelly met them in 1888+ Jg¢ John was travele-
ing around from place to place, and logging camps had a way of springing up
over nights This We Ls Torry had a lot of timber on the Willow River near
Remer., They landed thelr logs on the river when the ice was on, and put
booms around the logse Then when the spring thaws came, they towed the booms
of logs down the river, with small steamboats,

Joe Dobson, a very good friend of Torrey's ) tended Pokegama Dam
when Torry and Libby logged around Cohasset.

Sources; Interview with John Skelly, Cohassets
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1Try 1n august 1Y1l<. The place I have home-
homesteaded Dy & man by the name of McDonnel. He relincuished
relinquished to me. This place was located
in the shape of a T. Albert Garling's place
east in Sec. 34 R.27 Tp.62, although I think Garling owned

in here, a2lso in Grand Rapids as he would deal in anything

ROBERT J. DAVIS. by intervi
iy father Jamed& Davis, my mother, my broth BAY and my sister BELLA came
to Liberty Township in the fal r 1902. We came by ra : ir as the ITASCA lumbe r
on XILLDEER lske. From there we walked to the Big Fork river, & distance
& bit more. This camp was run oy Bert Cabinew (?9)
Fork by boat until we reached the Big Be
rent up Harrison creek for about four miles, settling on the
R.20 Tp. 150. 4t the time we came nere, Hesrison ereek co

canoe or boat. But you could walk up the oreek bed most of tae
There were several settlers here when we came, but nmy father wa
to bring in a family. I'M not sure but wnat my mother and sister were

first women in the Tp. I am not sure if ANNA HAUCK was Keeping house for her

brother at that time or not,.
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ITASCA COUNTY HISTORY - Indians -~ Shaw
From interview with Edward lMalcolm Wilson, President of the Chippewa
Gouncil of Minnesota. -~ May 25, 1941.

The Chippewas in Minnesota number about thirteen thousand. There
are 8ix reservations. They hold an election every year, in the following
manner. Each local council elects two delegates., There are about sixty
delegates altogether. These delegates go to Cass Lake for the election.

Out of these sixty delegates are elected two executive members from each re-
servation, which makes s board of twelve executive members. The officers
are elected from these twelve executive members, The Chippewas in Minnesota
are organized under the Wheeler-Howard Act, which was put through Congress
by the work of Senator Wheeler and Reppesentative Howard.

Mr. Lewis Burton Wilson, father of Edward Malcolm Wilson, came
from the State of Maine shortly after the Civil War. He had enlisted in the
war before he was of age. Two of his brothers had also enlisted. One of
these brothers was killed in the war; the other, George, left the State of
Maine after the war, went around Cape Horn to California, There he made his
home. He had a mill there, in partnership with another man. He also owned
orchards there. Later, the partnership broke up, George Wilson sold the
mill and retired. He died in California,

Mr. Lewis Burton Wilson and the rest of the family moved into Min-
neapolis when Minneapolis was just a small place. Three of Edward Wilson's
aunts married there in Minneapolis. Lewis Wilson came up the Mississippi,
landing in Brainerd. Later he went to Aitkin, and finally came up to this
part of the country. When he arrived here, he met some of his old s¢hool-

mates, among them being Bob McCabe and Mike McAlpine.

At that time there were no roads, all travel being done by steam=
boats, cances, and trails. Lewis Wilson worked on the Prairie river and
the Mississippi River. At that time they chopped the trees down, instead
of sawing them, and Mr. Edward Wilson says that some of the old stumps
from the trees his father chopped at that time are still there.

Lewis B. Wilson cruised most of the country between here and
Canada. He had learned eruising in the State of Maine. Edward Wilson re-
members when they used to paddle up the Mississippi into Winnibigoshish
and following the Pigeon river go into Round Lake, and thence into Canada.
Sometimes they went through Cutfoot Sioux and the portage, and that is
where the Turtle Mound is.

The Winnibigoshish, Cass Lake and Leech Lake bands are Pillager
Indians. The Mille Lacs Lake Indians are part of the Mississippi band,
as are the White QOak Point Indians., All originated from the Great Lakes
bands, when the Sioux were here, and it was this Great Lakes band that
made the Turtle Mound.




3TASCA COUNTY HIOSTORY =~ Indians - Shaw,

k }rom interview with sdward Malcolm Wilson, President of the Chippewa
\ Qouncil of Minnesota = May 25, 1941,

I have a brief prepared by the Department of Interior, at the
time the Indian Swamp Land case came upe The State of Minnesota went to
law over this lands The Yovernment had issued patents to the state. The
swamps belonged to the Indians, The state lost that cases Ve, the Indians,
class these swamp lands as about the most valuable lands we have, because
the Indians get their wild rice there every year, and used to get most of
the fur bearing animals there alsos, Thia land 1s most valuable land to the
Indians, outside of the sugar bushes,

In 1855 our great-grandfather was chief of White Oak Point band
of Pokegama Indians, His name was Ge=-ghe=ivay-me=te-goosh, meaning Big
Frenchman, After our great-grandfather died his authority wemt to his
oldest son. His name was .

In 1855 the Commissioner of Indlan Affairs and the Uovernor were
acting as Superintendent of the Minnesota fhippewans. There was an agency
at Crow Wing. <he Commissioner of Indian Affairs sent a telegram to gather
all the old chief together. Chief Hole-In-The=Day was Chief of the Missis=-
8ippl Indlans, and was also the leader of the Minnesota Chippewa Tribes.

My great-grandfather was chief of the Pokegam2 Indians, <Lhey were called
down to Washington in 1856, The telegram read that if they could not be
in Washington by the 15th of February of that year they should not proceed.

The Governor sent out runners. Lhe runners went to Crow Wing
and notified the agent there to sent the Chiefs on a trip to Washington.
The time was so short they did not have time to spread the news, so oaly
part of them went.s They did not know what the trip was all about, How=
ever, the word was spread, and the Chiefs started for St. Paul with the
sub=agent from Crow Wings At St. Paul the sub-agent from Crow Wing left
his delegation and went on to Washington by himself.

The Chiefs stayed in S5t. Paul a few days, and all this while
more G@hiefs kept dropping ine The Governor wrote a letter criticising
the action of the Bub=agent in leaving the Chiefs in St. Paul and going
on alone. He gave this letter to Qhlef Hole-In-The-Day to present to
the Commissioner of Indian Affairs at Washington.

When the delegation of Chiefs finally got to washington the

Govermment called them together and tried to get them to sign off six of
heir reservations to the Govermment, These reservations weres the

Pokegama, Sandy Leke, East Lake, Mille Lac, Rabbit Lake, Gull Lake. The
Indians refused to sign. They called this delegation together about
twenty times or so, and they would not sign. They wanted the Indians
to sign their reservations to the Govermment, and the Government would
establish Leech Lake and White Earth reservations,

Pinally, at the twenty=-first meeting the Indians signed. I
believe Chief Hole=In-The=Day was promised two thousand dollars if he
could get his Chiefs to sign, and I think he used liguor to get them to
signe There was one Indlan, one of the Chief's from the Pillagers, who
never drank; and he would not sign, and he was the only one that would
not signe He promised to tell his band all about it when he got back
to Minnesota.
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: When they got ready to go home, Chief Hole=In=The=pay wanted
his money. They said that would be too much money fmam for him to carry,
and that he should go back to St. Paul end they would wire the money to
St. Paul and it would be walting for him in the bank there. When he

got to S5t. Paul he went to the bank and there was no money there for

hime Vhen he discovered that the promise to him had not been kept he
Jointd the Sloux on the war pathe The Mill Lac Chiefs finally stopped
them,

When the other Chlefs started on the old trail from St. Paul
to go to their homes they camped the first night on the Mississippil river.
dere they killed the @hief who had promised to tell what had gone on down
there in Washington. (His name was Wa~be-besh-she~kee, meaning Gray 0x.)

However, after they got back, the news leaked out in some way.

It went for some time before this news did leak out, and
made another trip to Washington that winter. Vhen he came back he got a
couple of gallons of liquor in St. Paul to take back as a treat, VWhile
he was down in Washington the news had spread. !hen he got back he in=

ited this bunch to a partys. They were practically all relatives, After
they had got to going, someone sprung this, It ended up in a wholesale
fight, afd almost every one of them was killed in this trouble at Rabbit
Lake,

(?2ken in shorthand, and transeribed from notes given at this interview.)
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